
This PDF Package contains multiple files grouped 
together within a single PDF file.
Nuance PDF Converter Professional 7, and other recent PDF viewers, can 
be used to view and work with the files contained within this package.

Don’t have PDF Packaging 
capabilities today? 

Get PDF Converter  
Professional 7.

Click here to find  
out more >>

To get started, click any file in this PDF Package to view it.

 ·  PDF packages group multiple files and file types 
together for ease of distribution and sharing.

 ·  PDF packages organize related files for easier viewing 
and printing.

 ·  PDF packages maintain the original security settings for 
each document included in the package.

Note: In older PDF viewers/editors, the files are stored as attachments.

http://www.nuance.com/imaging/products/pdfconverter.asp
http://www.nuance.com/imaging/products/pdfconverter.asp

	Package.pdf




OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA AMENDED


Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton,
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location
given below.


Meeting of the:
Date /Time:
Location:


Members:


CC:


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON
Tuesday, June 19 at 6:00 PM
Ed Overland Room (City Hall 381 E. Main St., Stoughton WI 53589)
Regina Hirsch, Nicole Wiessinger, Denise Duranczyk, Phil Caravello, Tim Swadley


Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,
Judi Krebs, Mary Demczak, Pat Groom, Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel,
Desi Weum, oregonobserver@wcinet.com, Council Members, Bill Livick


* Note-For security reasons, the front doors of the City Hall building (including the elevator
door) will be locked after 4:30 p.m. If you need to enter City Hall after that time, please use the
entrance on the east side of City Hall (the planning department door). If you are physically
challenged and are in need of the elevator or other assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to 4:30
p.m.


Item # CALL TO ORDER
1 Call to Order


2 Approval of Minutes from May 15, 2018


3 Communication
Bike Route Sign Installation


Pickleball Court Construction


Administrative Workload


Item # OLD BUSINESS
4 Park Development Fund Report (Discussion & Possible Action)


5 School District Use of the Youth Center (Discussion & Possible Action)


6 Fair Contract (Discussion & Possible Action)


7 Yahara River Whitewater Park Update (Discussion & Possible Action)


8 Future CIP Items (Discussion)


9 Park Development Standard Guidelines (Discussion)







10 Chalet Court Land (Discussion)


11 Criddle Park Playground (Discussion)


Item # NEW BUSINESS
12 Arnett Properties Parkland Dedication & Improvements (Discussion &


Possible Action)


13 Oak Knoll Park Improvements (Discussion & Possible Action)


14 Parks Friends Group Formation (Discussion)


15 Collector Roads vs Off Road Trails (Discussion)


16 Park and Open Space Plan - Survey & Public Input (Discussion)


17 Yahara River Trail Bid (Discussion & Possible Action)


18 Future Agenda Items


Item # ADJOURNMENT








PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
May 15 2018
6:00 PM
Stoughton City Hall, Ed Overland Room


Present: Alderpersons: Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Nicole Wiessinger, Mayor Tim Swadley,
and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn
Guests: Pat Groom, Dylan Lehmann


1. Call to Order
Meeting called to order by Regina Hirsch at 6:00 pm.


2. Approval of the Minutes from April 11, 2018
Motion by Regina Hirsch seconded by Phil Caravello to approve the minutes of April 11 as
requested. Motion carried 3-0.


3. Communications


Bike Route Installation
Caravello shared that weather has delayed the installation. There are four teams of two people
that are volunteering to install the signs and they will be up by June.


Lower Yahara River Trail Signs
Groom shared that the signs are in the City’s possession and be installed within the next week.


Pickleball Construction
Glynn shared that area pickleball players have donated enough money to cover the cost of
interior fencing. Glynn shared that there was an issue with the way the contractor laid out the
courts and he caught the mistake prior to them paving. The contractor was going to reorient the
court north south instead of the east west orientation they had.


Old Business


4. Park Development Fund Report
Glynn shared that Director LaBorde was working on finalizing the report and it was not ready for
the meeting. LaBorde committed to having the report finalized prior to her departure from the City.


5. School District Use of the Youth Center
Glynn shared that the School District uses the facility for their special education transition
program and that is used outside of the Youth Center’s program hours. Mayor Swadley shared
that he attended a meeting with the School District about a possible lease for the facility and there
were concerns about liability.


6. Fair Contract
Glynn shared that he communicated with the Fair about the status of the contract and was
informed by them that they didn’t cover the contract at their meeting since they were working on
their event. Glynn shared the list of the Fair’s events with the committee.


7. Yahara River Whitewater Park Update
Glynn shared that he finalized the WDNR Stewardship Fund application and sent it in. Glynn
shared with the committee that he will be meeting with WDNR representatives and Gary Lacy
about permitting on May 16. Glynn shared that he thinks the Conceptual Plan Presentation will be
well attended and that the Facebook event went viral. Glynn shared that he is continuing to work
with the UW Urban Planning Department on developing an economic impact analysis for the
project.


8. Criddle Park Natural Playground


Glynn shared the history of the project with the committee. Glynn shared that there will be a
neighborhood potluck on May 31 where he will get input from users of the park.







9. Park Development Standard Guidelines
Glynn shared to the committee some of the issues in the past and the reasoning behind having
guidelines. Hirsch shared that she would like more detailed criteria on different types of parks and
the way they should be designed. Glynn shared the outline of the project and that it needs to be
broken down by section so that it gets done.


New Business


10. Rotary Park Benches & Rain Garden
Hirsch shared that we need to invite Rotary Club to our next meeting for a discussion about the
future of Rotary Park. Glynn shared the background about the park furnishings.


11. Chalet Court Land
Hirsch shared that the property has unique natural features and is utilized by Kegonsa School.
The committee discussed about investigating how much the property is used by the school.
Caravello suggested that there may be potential to have a trail go through the property to connect
Main St and the school


12. Election of Chair


Motion made by Phil Caravello seconded by Nicole Wiessinger to nominate Regina Hirsch as
Chair. Motion passed 3-0.


13. Election of Vice Chair


Motion made by Regina Hirsch seconded by Phil Caravello to nominate Nicole Wiessinger as
Vice Chair. Motion passed 3-0.


14. Eagle Scout Bird Houses


Lehmann presented his eastern bluebird project to the committee. He noted the decline of
bluebirds in local populations as the need for the houses. He explained that he would build 8 to
10 houses and the specifications for the houses. He explained that he was looking at Norse Park
as a location for one, but didn’t have locations for the other houses. The committee shared that
when he goes to City Council for final approval that he should provide locations for each of the
houses.


Motion made by Phil Caravello seconded by Nicole Weissinger to recommend to City Council to
approve the project. Motion passed 3-0.


15. Future CIP Items


Glynn shared future CIP items with the committee and highlighted the importance of an ADA
Transition Plan. Mayor Swadley said to focus on the next two years and use the updated Parks
and Open Space Plan after that.


16. Future Agenda Items
Park Friends Group
Park Development Guidelines
Whitewater Park Steering Committee Appointment
Whitewater Park Update
Fair Contract
Collector Roads vs Off Road Trails
Signs for Trail
Chalet Court – Talk to Kegonsa Principal


Adjournment







Motion made by Nicole Wiessinger seconded by Phil Caravello at 9:15 pm. Motion passed 3-0.








Yahara River Recreational Trail, Project SPR-003
Bid Date: 6-1-2018


ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION Poblocki Paving Corp
1 Cleaning and Grubbing $16,800.00
2 Mobilization/Demobilization $2,400.00
3 Excavation Cut- Off-site disposal $11,366.40
4 Non-woven geotextile fabric Type SAS $6,216.00
5 Crushed Aggregate Base Course - No 57 gradiation $4,475.52
6 Construction Entrance Tracking Pad $1,800.00
7 Crushed Aggregate Base Course - No 2 or No 3 gradiation $9,059.04
8 Hot Mix Asphalt- Type 3 LT 5828 S $32,111.03
9 Shoulder Restoration - Seed, Fertilize, and Mulch $2,841.60


10 Sawcut existing bituminous pavement $72.00
COMPUTED TOTAL BASE BID CONTRACT SPR-003 (ITEMS 1 THROUGH 10) $87,141.59


ALTERNATIVE BID #1 - BJOIN PARK TENNIS COURT


ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION
11 Alt. Bid #1 Mobilization/Demobilization $3,300.00
12 Alt Bid #1 Base Aggregate Dense - 3/4 inch $906.24
13 Alt Bid #1 - 3.5 inch depth HMA Pavement - Type 5 LT 58-28S $19,720.11
14 Alt Bid #1 - Paint - 2 Resurfacer Coats $2,509.51
15 Alt Bid #1 - Paint - 2 Color Coats $2,715.09
16 Alt Bid #1 - Tennis/Pickleball Court Striping - 2 inch thickness $1,439.94
17 Alt Bid #1 - Pulverize and Relay Existing Asphalt $3,735.20
18 Alt Bid #1 - Base Aggregate Dense - 3 inch $971.52
19 Alt Bid #1 - Excavation Off-site Disposal $1,455.84
20 Alt Bid #1 - Seed, Fertilize, and Mulch - Sun and Shade Mix $1,488.63
21 Alt Bid #1 - Install Tennis Nets/posts $2,100.00
22 Alt Bid #1 - Silt Fence $176.40
23 Alt Bid #1 - Construction Entrance Tracking Pad $1,800.00
24 Alt Bid #1 - Remove Extg. Wood Wall $600.00
25 Alt Bid #1 - Install New 10' high chain link Fence $5,472.00
26 Alt Bid #1 - Install New Wood Wall - 10'(H) X 40' (W) $7,560.00
27 Alt Bid #1 - Install Benches $2,102.00
28 Alt Bid #1 - Remove Lightpoles $60.00
29 Alt Bid #1 - Remove Existing Chain Link Fence $486.00


COMPUTED TOTAL ALTERNATE BID #1 CONTRACT SPR-003 (ITEMS 11 THROUGH 29) $58,598.48


ALTERNATIVE BID #2 - POOR SUBSOIL CONDITIONS (UNIT COST)


ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION
30 Alternative Bid #2 - Undercutting Subgrade (Unit Cost) $50.40
31 Alternative Bid #2 - Geotextile Fabric - Type SAS (Unit Cost) $6.00


COMPUTED ALTERNATIVE BID #2 CONTRACT SPR-003 (ITEM 30)
COMPUTED ALTERNATIVE BID #2 CONTRACT SPR-003 (ITEM 31)


BIDDERS


BIDDERS


BIDDERS

























































Cr


ea Yahara Riverfront Development


Enter Company Name in cell B2.Stoughton Parks & Recreation


Enter the name of the Project Lead in cell B3. Enter the Project Start date in cell E3. Pooject Start: label is in cell C3.
Dan Glynn


Th


e
60


Ce 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11


Th


is
TASK


ASSIGNED


TO
PROGRESS START END M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S


Ce


ll Whitewater Park Research


Ce


ll Benefits Dan & Tom 100% 11/1/16 1/31/17


R


o Cost Dan & Tom 100% 1/31/17 2/14/17


Feasibility Dan & Tom 100% 2/14/17 5/1/17


DNR Buy-In Dan 100% 2/1/17 1/8/18


Decision to Move Forward Dan 100% 1/8/18 1/8/18


Th


e Coming to a Consensus


Steering Committee Creation Dan 50% 2/1/18 6/15/18


User Group Input Sessions Steering Committee 0% 7/1/18 12/31/18


Decision on In-Stream Features Steering Committee 0% 7/1/18 12/31/18


Descision on Rental Facility Dan (Business Plan) 0% 9/27/18 12/31/18


Decision on Fishing Features Steering Committee 0% 7/1/18 12/31/18


Consensus on Project Steering Committee 0% 7/1/18 12/31/18


Sample phase title block
Engineering & Construction - In-Stream Features and Trails


Phase I - Conceptual Plan REP 100% 2/1/18 5/16/18


Phase II - Preliminary Design & Permitting REP 0% 3/1/19 9/1/19


Phase III - Final Design, Bid Support, Construction Oversight REP 0% 9/1/19 10/15/20


Uniryoal Trail Engineering Vierbecher 0% 9/1/19 12/31/19


Soil & Sediment Sampling True North Consulting 0% 1/1/19 3/1/19


Soil & Sedimental Disposal 0% 1/1/20 10/15/20


RDA & Uniroal Easements Dan & Attorney 15% 3/1/18 12/31/18


Uniroyal Trail Construction 0% 4/15/20 10/15/20


In-Stream Features, Trail, and Riverwalk Construction 0% 4/15/20 10/15/20


Engineering & Construction - Facility


Preliminary Facility Cost Estimates Dan 100% 3/1/18 5/31/18


Business Plan for Facility Dan 5% 9/27/18 12/31/18


Mandt Park Master Plan (Finalize Location) Dan 0% 1/1/19 12/31/19


Concept & Master Plan Validation Dan & Architect 0% 1/21/20 2/18/20


Schematic Design Architect 0% 2/18/20 3/4/20


Jan 29, 2018 Feb 5, 2018


Tue, 11/1/2016


Dec 18, 2017 Dec 25, 2017 Jan 1, 2018 Jan 8, 2018


Project Start:


Display Week:
Jan 15, 2018 Jan 22, 2018







Th


e
60


Ce 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11


Th


is
TASK


ASSIGNED


TO
PROGRESS START END M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S


Jan 29, 2018 Feb 5, 2018Dec 18, 2017 Dec 25, 2017 Jan 1, 2018 Jan 8, 2018
Display Week:


Jan 15, 2018 Jan 22, 2018


Design Development Architect 0% 3/4/20 5/1/20


Construction Documents Architect 0% 5/1/20 7/1/20


Bidding Architect 0% 7/1/20 8/1/20


Construction Architect 0% 8/1/20 3/14/21


Sample phase title block
Fundraising


Initial Foundation Meetings Dan 50% 1/1/18 8/31/18


Apply for DNR Stewardship Fund Dan 100% 2/1/18 5/1/18


Professional Fundraiser vs In-House Decision Steering Committee 0% 6/4/18 7/31/18


Develop Project Budget Dan & Steering Committee 65% 2/1/18 12/31/18


Develop Fundraising Strategy Dan & Steering Committee 0% 7/31/18 9/31/18


Fundraise Dan & Steering Committee 0% 10/1/18 3/1/20


This is an empty row
Th


is
Insert new rows ABOVE this one


Page 2 of 4







SIMPLE GANTT CHART by Vertex42.com
https://www.vertex42.com/ExcelTemplates/simple-gantt-chart.html


About This Template
This template provides a simple way to create a Gantt chart to help visualize and track your project.


Simply enter your tasks and start and end dates - no formulas required. The bars in the Gantt chart


represent the duration of the task and are displayed using conditional formatting. Insert new tasks by


inserting new rows.


Guide for Screen Readers
There are 2 worksheets in this workbook.


TimeSheet


About


The instructions for each worksheet are in the A column starting in cell A1 of each worksheet. They are


written with hidden text. Each step guides you through the information in that row. Each subsequent step


continues in cell A2, A3, and so on, unless otherwise explicitly directed. For example, instruction text might


say "continue to cell A6" for the next step.


This hidden text will not print.


To remove these instructions from the worksheet, simply delete column A.


Additional Help
Click on the link below to visit vertex42.com and learn more about how to use this template, such as how


to calculate days and work days, create task dependencies, change the colors of the bars, add a scroll bar


to make it easier to change the display week, extend the date range displayed in the chart, etc.


How to Use the Simple Gantt Chart


More Project Management Templates
Visit Vertex42.com to download other project management templates, including different types of


project schedules, Gantt charts, tasks lists, etc.


Project Management Templates


About Vertex42
Vertex42.com provides over 300 professionally designed spreadsheet templates for business, home, and


education - most of which are free to download. Their collection includes a variety of calendars, planners,


and schedules as well as personal finance spreadsheets for budgeting, debt reduction, and loan


amortization.







Businesses will find invoices, time sheets, inventory trackers, financial statements, and project planning


templates. Teachers and students will find resources such as class schedules, grade books, and


attendance sheets. Organize your family life with meal planners, checklists, and exercise logs. Each


template is thoroughly researched, refined, and improved over time through feedback from thousands of


users.







 


Recreation Engineering and Planning 


485 Arapahoe Ave 


Boulder | CO | 80302 


(303) 545-5883 


1 


Proposal for Hydraulic Analysis, Preliminary Design and 


Permitting Assistance 
Yahara River Whitewater Recreation Improvements  


Stoughton, WI 


By Recreation Engineering & Planning (REP) 


May 18, 2018 
 


The following proposal is for Hydraulic Analysis, Preliminary Design and Permitting 


Assistance services for recreational improvements on the Yahara River in Stoughton, WI. 


This proposal is being sent to Dan Glynn of the City of Stoughton as requested.  


 
 


Work Item Task Cost 


Phase I 


1 


Concept Plan: 
Kick off meeting, site visit and review of site opportunities and 
constraints, obtain appropriate base mapping, develop conceptual 
renderings and narrative report identifying potential whitewater, bank, 
access, and navigation improvements along the Yahara River in 
Stoughton. Meet with applicable regulatory agencies. On Site 
Presentation in Stoughton to present the conceptual plan to the City 
of Stoughton and key stakeholders. 


Completed 


Phase II 


1 


Site Survey: 
Obtain bathymetric (river bottom) and adjacent topographic survey 
data necessary for the design of the instream portion of the park. 
REP will provide a bathymetric topographical map at the appropriate 
scale.  


$6,500.00 


2 


Hydraulic Analysis: 
Update the DNR model of record with updated survey data, build 
proposed conditions model, calibrate, and analyze floodplain impacts. 
Submit model and report to local floodplain administrator for review 
and comment. Does not include additional requests from the DNR. 
Hydraulic analysis for fish passage, split flow analysis for the bypass 
channel and whitewater performance characteristics.  


$12,800.00 


3 


Preliminary Design (60%): 
Develop a preliminary plan for the site. This plan will include a short 
design report on recommendations for in-channel improvements to 
enhance boating and fish habitat, and for access and bank 
improvements as outlined in the concept plan. The intent is to 
provide: 


• Preliminary plan of structures that are structurally and 
hydraulically sound, aesthetically pleasing, and natural in 
appearance. Includes plan, profile, section, and typical 
drawings 


• Drawings suitable for permit applications 


• Sufficient detail to determine preliminary costs 


$46,000.00 







 


Recreation Engineering and Planning 


485 Arapahoe Ave 


Boulder | CO | 80302 


(303) 545-5883 


2 


 


4 


Quantity and Cost Estimate: 
Revise conceptual quantity and cost estimate concurrent with 
preliminary design 


$1,800.00 


5 


Permitting Assistance: 
Application for USACE 404 Permit, Wisconsin State DNR Permits 
(dredging, bank modification, headrace and tailrace abandonment) 
and local floodplain development permit.  
Includes two (2) design review meetings with City and DNR staff.  


$21,000.00 


6 
Additional Request: Complete additional requests from the 
permitting agencies. 


As Requested 
Hourly 


Estimate Travel Expenses: Three (3) trips to Stoughton.  
Only direct expenses will be billed. 


$3,300.00 


Total Phase II $91,400.00 


Phase III 


7 


Final Design:  
Development of final construction plans and technical specifications  
Final construction plans to include:  


• Design layouts, cross sections, profiles, elevations, details, 
and specifications for river improvements. 


• Includes one round of stakeholder comments and revisions 
 


$34,400.00 


8 


Bidding Support:  
Aide the City with preparation of bid documents and review, 
attendance to the pre-bid meeting, answer contractor questions, and 
review bids. Assumes the project will be bid through the City of 
Stoughton. 


$6,400.00 


9 


Construction Phase Services:  
Construction phase services to include: attendance to the pre-
construction meeting, construction inspection and documentation, 
quantity documentation, quality conformance, etc. Technical support 
and communication to both the approved contractor and city 
representative through the complete construction process. This will 
include critical on-site technical inspections and review of work for 
compliance to drawings, details and specifications. Assumes a six (6) 
month construction period.  


$30,720.00 


  Estimate Travel Expenses: Only direct expenses will be billed. $11,200.00  


  Phase III Total: $82,720.00  
  


 Notes:  
2) assumes the DNR will supply the current effective HEC-RAS model of record for the reach. 
5) includes two design review meetings with City staff, regulatory agencies and other key stakeholders.  
5)Does not include additional rebuttals, studies, reviews, analysis, threatened and endangered species, etc. 
that may be required by the agencies noted above. 
9) Construction phase services (assumes eight (8) trips to the site at three (3) days each) 


  







 


Recreation Engineering and Planning 


485 Arapahoe Ave 


Boulder | CO | 80302 


(303) 545-5883 


3 


 


 


Payment 


 


Invoices will be sent every 30 days for work completed plus expenses.  Payment is due 


within 30 days.    


 


If the above proposal is acceptable to you, please print 2 copies, sign both copies and 


return to REP. 


 


Submitted by:                   5/18/18   


   Gary Lacy, President        Date 


   REP Headquarters 


   485 Arapahoe Ave 


   Boulder, CO 80302 


   (303) 545-5883 


   gary@boaterparks.com 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Approved by:    ______________________            ___________________   


   [Please Print Name, Title,         Date 


 Address, and 


 Telephone Number] 





		Yahara Project Schedule.pdf

		Stoughton_proposal Design Services.pdf






Project/Park


Yahara Riverfront Development 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Mandt Park Master Plan $16,000 $16,000 Ayres Proposal


Mandt Park & Riverside Park - Whitewater Park Phase II Engineering and Permitting $91,400 $45,700 $45,700 REP Proposal, Needs to happen in 2019 to keep project on schedule for 2020 completion due to DNR Stewardship Fund timeline requirements


Mandt Park & Riverside Park - Whitewater Park Phase III Engineering and Permitting $82,720 $41,360 $41,360 REP Proposal, Needs to happen in 2019 to keep project on schedule for 2020 completion due to DNR Stewardship Fund timeline requirements


Uniroyal Trail Engineering $14,840 $7,420 $7,420 Vierbecher Cost Estimate


Soil & Sediment Sampling (Waste Determination) $30,000 $15,000 $15,000 Cost increased from initial conversations due to bypass channel. Would need 3-4 sediment and 10-12 soil sample locations.


Sediment & Soil Disposal TBD TBD Depends on how much material is contaminated and with what. WEDC material management (matching cost)


Trail & Whitewater Feature Construction $1,976,470 $224,942 $720,000 $1,031,528 Cost estimates provided by REP and Vierbecher, Stewarship Fund cover up to half the cost, proposed TIF would cover 100% of the riverwalk and bank restoration of RDA site, and 25% of the in-stream features


Rental Facility - Site Construction Costs (site grading, parking lots, landscaping, etc) $205,975 TBD TBD ADCI Cost Estimate for 7500 sq ft building with kitchen for concessions. Anticipate applying for grants to cover costs. Building size and features won't be decided until business planning is completed.


Rental Facility - Building Construction Costs $1,443,750 TBD TBD ADCI Cost Estimate for 7500 sq ft building with kitchen for concessions. Anticipate applying for grants to cover costs. Building size and features won't be decided until business planning is completed.


Rental Facility - Furniture, Fixtures, & Equipment (food service equipment, lockers, etc) $168,740 TBD TBD ADCI Cost Estimate for 7500 sq ft building with kitchen for concessions. Anticipate applying for grants to cover costs. Building size and features won't be decided until business planning is completed.


Rental Facility - Soft Costs (architectural design, civil engineering, soil testing, etc) $212,500 TBD TBD ADCI Cost Estimate for 7500 sq ft building with kitchen for concessions. Anticipate applying for grants to cover costs. Building size and features won't be decided until business planning is completed.


Passenger Vans (Shuttles) TBD TBD Won't be decided until business planning is completed


Canoe and Kayak Trailers TBD TBD Won't be decided until business planning is completed


Kayaks, Canoes, and Innertubes TBD TBD Won't be decided until business planning is completed


Mandt Park Skating Trail TBD TBD Won't be decided until business planning is completed


Criddle Park 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Natural/Adventure Playground $45,000 $40,000 Moyer's cost estimate


Nordic Ridge Park 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Playground $125,000 $48,634.00 $16,366.00 $60,000 Lee Rec Proposal, Impact Fees are based on 77 1 bedroom units being built on lot 134, Grant to cover pour in place surfacing


Multiuse Sport Court $61,000 Based on 2018 Bjoin Park Reconstruction Bids, Asphalt Court


Park Furnishings $7,700 $7,700 Bike Rack X 1, Tables X 4, Benches X 3, Trash Cans X 5. Based on same tables and benches used for uniformity.


Kettle Park West Park 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


KPW Playground TBD General items typically included. Unknown when park will be built.


KPW Multiuse Sport Court TBD


KPW Shelter TBD


KPW Park Furnishings (Bike Rack, Trash Cans, Benches, Tables) TBD


KPW Solar TBD


Mandt Park Pickleball Courts 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Perimeter Fencing $7,000 Price quote from Lemke Fence, Interior fencing was fundraised in 2018, 4' High chain link with two gates


Court Lighting $25,000 $12,500 $12,500


Racetrack Park 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Racetrack Park - Barn Renovation TBD


Racetrack Park - Scoreboard Controllers (Diamonds 3 & 4) $2,000 $2,000


Racetrack Park Master Plan $17,000 $17,000 Would need to know prior to acquiring land to the west and expanding the park


Park Expansion - Harvey Property $150,000 $150,000 The property is roughly 10 acres. A local developer told us that land has been going for $15,000/acre in 2018. There is $199,000 in the park development fund for land acquisition.


Expansion Development TBD


Settler's Point 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Trail $101,250 $50,625 $50,625 Vierbecher cost estimate, trail would connect to Viking County Park and run along river to high spot in Settler's Point. Bryan Foundation would match the City's contribution.


Nature Center/Livery TBD When development takes place. Would be a 3 mile trip from this location to Mandt Park which is the most popular length of trip in Ann Arbor


Lowell Park 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Playground Replacement $50,000 $50,000 Replace current structure


Division Street Park 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Boat House Renovation $40,000 Possibility for public/private partnership with concessions


Norse Park 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Norse $50,000 $50,000 Replace current playstructure


Shelter Replacement TBD Would need to be a four season shelter if skating remains at park


Troll Beach 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Sinking Fund Notes


Inflatable Equipment Replacement $3,969 $2,500 $10,000 $4,800 $2,869 $1,600 $25,738


Mobi Mat - Hard Surface Mat for Sand (ADA Requirement) $4,500 $4,500 Needed for ADA compliance, quote from manufacturer who sells direct


Lounge Chair Replacement $1,400 $1,400 $2,800 Would cover 10 chairs each time. Doheny's


Safety Bouys $700 $700


$29,238


Yahara River Trail 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Hospital to Cooper's Causeway Segment TBD We need two easements for this trail connection and the property owners do not want to grant the easement. Phase II of Lower Yahara River Trail by the County is expected to be completed by the end of 2021.


Cooper's Causeway to Division St Park TBD


Uniroyal Park 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Gen Obligation Debt Park Development Fund TIF Grants Notes


Uniroyal Land


Year


Year


Year


Year


Year


Year


Year


Year


Year


Year


Funding Source


Funding Source


Funding Source


Year


Year


Year


Funding Source


Funding Source


Funding Source


Funding Source


Funding Source


Funding Source


Funding Source


Funding Source


Funding Source


Funding Source







REP Proposal, Needs to happen in 2019 to keep project onschedule for 2020 completion due to DNR Stewardship Fund timeline requirements


REP Proposal, Needs to happen in 2019 to keep project onschedule for 2020 completion due to DNR Stewardship Fund timeline requirements


Cost increased from initial conversations due to bypass channel. Would need 3-4 sediment and 10-12 soil sample locations.


Depends on how much material is contaminated and withwhat. WEDC material management (matching cost)


Cost estimates provided by REP and Vierbecher, Stewarship Fund cover up to half the cost, proposed TIF would cover 100% of the riverwalk and bank restoration of RDA site, and 25% of the in-stream features


ADCI Cost Estimate for 7500 sq ft building with kitchen forconcessions. Anticipate applying for grants to cover costs. Building size and features won't be decided until business planning is completed.


ADCI Cost Estimate for 7500 sq ft building with kitchen forconcessions. Anticipate applying for grants to cover costs. Building size and features won't be decided until business planning is completed.


ADCI Cost Estimate for 7500 sq ft building with kitchen forconcessions. Anticipate applying for grants to cover costs. Building size and features won't be decided until business planning is completed.


ADCI Cost Estimate for 7500 sq ft building with kitchen forconcessions. Anticipate applying for grants to cover costs. Building size and features won't be decided until business planning is completed.


Lee Rec Proposal, Impact Fees are based on 77 1 bedroomunits being built on lot 134, Grant to cover pour in place surfacing


Bike Rack X 1, Tables X 4, Benches X 3, Trash Cans X 5. Based on same tables and benches used for uniformity.


Price quote from Lemke Fence, Interior fencing was fundraised in 2018, 4' High chain link with two gates


Would need to know prior to acquiring land to the west and expanding the park


The property is roughly 10 acres. A local developer told usthat land has been going for $15,000/acre in 2018. There is $199,000 in the park development fund for land acquisition.


Vierbecher cost estimate, trail would connect to Viking County Park and run along river to high spot in Settler's Point. Bryan Foundation would match the City's contribution.


When development takes place. Would be a 3 mile trip from this location to Mandt Park which is the most popular length of trip in Ann Arbor


Needed for ADA compliance, quote frommanufacturer who sells direct


We need two easements for this trail connection and theproperty owners do not want to grant the easement. Phase II of Lower Yahara River Trail by the County is expected to be completed by the end of 2021.







Troll Beach Inflatable Replacement Schedule


2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Wibit Step $1,300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


Wibit Slope $2,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


Wibit Cliff $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,600 $0


Wibit Slide $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600


Wibit Quarterpipe $0 $2,500 $0 $0 $0 $0


Summit Express Slide $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0


Summit Free Fall 6 $0 $0 $0 $4,800 $0 $0


Wibit Bungee Ropes $269 $0 $0 $0 $269 $0


$3,969 $2,500 $10,000 $4,800 $2,869 $1,600







Dan Glynn, Director
381 East Main Street Stoughton, WI 53589
(608) 873-6746 www.stoughtonrec.com


CITY OF STOUGHTON
PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT


Date: June 15, 2018


Subject: CIP and Capital Outlay Narrative


This document is the narrative portion of my CIP and Capital Outlay. I will outline the projects below and provide explanations.


Yahara Riverfront Development (Whitewater Park) - Planning & Engineering
The planning and engineering for this project includes a park master plan for Mandt Park, Phase II and III of engineering from Rec-
reation Engineering and Planning, and soils and sediment sampling in the project area. This would all need to take place in 2019 if
the City is awarded funds from the WDNR. I have included an additional document that shows the project schedule that shows the
timeline in more detail. The project schedule is based on receiving funds from the WDNR and having two construction seasons to
complete the project. If we do not receive or opt to turn down WDNR funds, the timeline for the project could be extended. The mas-
ter plan for Mandt Park along with the soil and sediment sampling should be done prior to moving into Phase II and Phase III of en-
gineering.


Mandt Park Master Plan
A master plan would be needed for Mandt Park to forecast long-term usage and placement of infrastructure in the park. The plan
would gather input from user groups such as the Stoughton Fair and would focus on consensus building. This would give the com-
munity a long-term vision of how the park should be utilized. The cost estimate for this was gathered from communicating with three
different companies.


Soil & Sediment Sampling
Soil and sediment sampling are needed to see what needs to be disposed of when excavation for the bypass channel and in-stream
features of the park. Based on talking to the environmental consultant working with the RDA, the area should be tested for:


 Volatile organic compounds (VOCs)
 Semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs) or polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs).
 RCRA metals
 Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs)
 Gasoline Range Organics (GRO)
 Diesel Range Organics (DRO)
 Total and Reactive Sulfur


The sampling cost anticipated is higher than initially thought due to the excavation of the bypass channel. The sampling could take
place in the winter months to keep the project on schedule.


Recreation Engineering and Planning (REP) —Phase II and III
of Engineering and Permitting
This engineering services by REP would encompass the fol-
lowing project elements: bank restoration, the bypass channel,
in-stream improvements east of the 4th Street bridge, and the
river walk from the eastern edge of the RDA site to the dam
area.


Phase II includes a site survey, hydraulic analysis, preliminary
design, updated cost estimates, and permitting assistance.


Phase III includes final design, bidding support, and construc-
tion phase services (support during the construction period).


PDF Crea
te!


 7 
Tria


l


www.nuan
ce


.co
m







Uniroyal Trail Engineering
This is a general (15% of construction) cost estimate of the trail that would connect from the Stoughton dam area to Water St. The
trail would run along the river and include a boardwalk to avoid encroachment to Uniroyal’s propane storage containers. This addi-
tion along with the river walk would create over 2000 feet of off-road trails near the downtown area.


Sediment & Soil Disposal
The cost for this is unknown. It depends on if the area is contaminated and what it is contaminated with. Based on conversations with
residents who know the history of Riverside Park, they do not believe the soil will be contaminated. Chris Valcheff from True North
Consultants believes that the in-stream improvement areas near Fourth Street bridge do not have contaminants due to the flow in that
section of the river. The spillway area with little flow may be contaminated, but it is planned to be filled-in. The sampling cost esti-
mate includes consultant grant writing and oversight.


Yahara Riverfront Development (Whitewater Park) - Trail & In-Stream Improvement Construction
This cost is for the construction of the Uniroyal trail, river walk, bank restoration, in-stream features east of the Fourth St bridge, and
the bypass channel. This could be bid out in January of 2020 and construction would take three to four months according to Gary
Lacy from REP.


Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility—Planning & Engineering, Construction, and Equipment
These are costs for a 7,500 square foot facility and a placeholder until a business plan can be completed.
I have recently applied for a program with UW Extension and WEDC to provide business planning. The
business plan will assist in providing information on size of building, amenities and services to be of-
fered, and how to scale the operation.


Criddle Park Natural/Adventure Playground
Former Director Lynch had previously budgeted $30,000 for this playground replacement. After gather-
ing input from residents and neighbors of the park, the playground components favored were more ex-
pensive than initially planned. For example, the overwhelmingly favorite component voted by children is
the tree house to the right.


Nordic Ridge Park Playground
The plan for Nordic Park includes a playground. The playground structure has a cost estimate of $125,000 and is based on having a
$60,000 pour in place surface material. Initial conversations with a local founda-
tion have found that this is something they would consider funding.


$65,000 of the cost is the actual playground structure. There are still impact fees
to be collected that can assist in paying for the playground. The impact fees in-
cluded in the 2019 to 2023 CIP document assume 77 one bedroom units which
would generate $16,366 in impact fees.


Nordic Ridge Multi-Use Court
The plan for Nordic Ridge Park also includes a multipurpose sport court. The
cost estimate is based on the Bjoin Park court replacement project cost. The court
would be used for tennis, pickleball, and basketball.


Nordic Ridge Park Furnishings
Over $12,0000 was donated in 2018 for park furnishing at Nordic Ridge Park.
This included picnic tables for the shelter and benches for the splash pad area.
With the addition of the playground, additional benches and tables would be
needed. A bike rack is also needed at the park due to the splash pad and to en-
courage physical activity. Trash receptacles were also never budgeted for and are
included in this cost.


PDF Crea
te!


 7 
Tria


l


www.nuan
ce


.co
m







Mandt Park Pickleball Court Perimeter Fencing
Fencing for this project was not included in the initial budget. Area pickleball players have raised enough funds to cover interior
fencing in 2018. The perimeter fence would be four foot high chain link which is sufficient for pickleball since the balls do not
bounce like a tennis ball. The perimeter fencing would stop balls from rolling away from the court and deter anyone from parking a
vehicle on it.


Mandt Park Pickleball Lighting
Lighting the court would increase the usable time for playing at the court. There is some interest with local groups to assist with
funding.


Racetrack Park Scoreboard Controllers
There are scoreboards on diamonds 3 and 4 at Racetrack Park that are inoperable due to not having controllers for them. There is a
need for the controllers with large sport tournaments such as the state softball tournament.


Norse Park Playground Replacement
The $50,000 cost estimate provided by former Director Lynch is still accurate based on cost estimated provided by Lee Recreation
and Minnesota Wisconsin Playground. This cost would provide a replacement at the scale that is currently at the park. The current
playground is at the end of its lifespan according to parks maintenance.


Lowell Park Playground Replacement
The $50,000 cost estimate provided by former Director Lynch is still accurate based on cost estimated provided by Lee Recreation
and Minnesota Wisconsin Playground. This cost would provide a replacement at the scale that is currently at the park. The current
playground is at the end of its lifespan according to parks maintenance.


Troll Beach ADA Hard Surface Mat
The water at Troll Beach is currently not compliant with ADA Title II. There are hard surface mats that make the water accessible
for people with disabilities. The mat would create a path to the water from the sun shade concrete pad. There is a tool for the mat that
would allow maintenance to roll it up when dragging the sand.


Troll Beach Equipment Replacement
The sinking fund for Troll Beach currently has $18,000 in it. A lot of the inflatable equipment is nearing the end of its lifecycle and
needs to be replaced. I have created a replacement schedule that will phase in replacements over a period of time. The sinking fund
will cover these replacements.


Settler’s Point Trail
The Settler’s Point Trail will connect Viking County Park to Settler’s Point. The County has agreed to move the fence back from the
river’s edge and allow us to connect through to the Settler’s Point property. The end of the trail would be on high ground providing
views of the river. The trail would be 2400 linear feet and 10 feet wide. It would be a gravel trail. There is also wetland for 235 linear
feet where a boardwalk would need to be constructed. The cost estimate was prepared by Vierbecher. A local foundation has ex-
pressed interest in assisting with the project.PDF Crea


te!
 7 


Tria
l


www.nuan
ce


.co
m





		CIP 2019 to 2023 with Funding Sources.pdf

		Narative.pdf






Criddle Park Potluck Notes


- Schedule construction for summer break since the park is used as a bus stop


- No hiding spots and visibility into the park is important


- Basketball court has some holes that need to be patched


- Dog leash sign at the entrance to the River Trail at Cooper’s Causeway pedestrian bridge


- Design should focus on imagination and creativity


- Current playground works well because it is geared toward younger children with little


entrapments


- Like the loop around the playground since it makes the entire playground area accessible for


people with disabilities and older adults.


- Couple of spots at the fence could use reinforcement


- No musical instruments since the proximity to neighboring houses


- Boulder bridge to climb on – Boulder, CO example


- The current maze needs to be replaced since it creates a hiding place


- Seating close to the street for parents and grandparents


- Table for picnics would be nice


- Seating in the gazebo would be nice


- Parents would like a small shelter with a table/bench if the gazebo goes. It’s nice to have in


inclement weather


- Video camera or more police patrolling during the summer


- Garbage can in the winter since it’s a bus stop


PDF Crea
te!


 7 
Tria


l


www.nuan
ce


.co
m







Natural Park Playground Children Input


All Ages


First Second Third Totals Percentage


#1 Ground Fort 2 0 0 2 2.02%


#2 Climbing Wall 0 3 4 7 7.07%


#3 Cave 5 8 10 23 23.23%


#4 Tee Pee 3 5 3 11 11.11%


#5 Tree House 21 15 18 54 54.55%


#6 Swinging Bridge 4 10 10 24 24.24%


#7 Musical Instruments 2 2 1 5 5.05%


#8 Monkey Bars 6 4 7 17 17.17%


#9 Bridges 5 2 4 11 11.11%


#10 Tunnels 3 7 11 21 21.21%


#11 Sand Box 4 2 5 11 11.11%


#12 Balance Beams 3 5 1 9 9.09%


#13 Log Jam 2 6 4 12 12.12%


#14 Slides 2 5 6 13 13.13%


#15 Stepping Logs 0 2 1 3 3.03%


#16 Swings 32 11 12 55 55.56%


#17 Water Play 5 12 2 19 19.19%


Totals 99 99 99


PDF Crea
te!


 7 
Tria


l


www.nuan
ce


.co
m





		Criddle Park Potluck Notes.pdf

		Community Fun Night Feedback.pdf






North East Trail ProposedNorth East Trail Proposed







Old location of
trail


New proposed
Location for trail


20' Trail
Easement area


Existing ROW


Arnett's Addition To 
Norse View Heights  
Trail layout







N
O


R
TH


  P
A
G


E  STR
EET


C
A
R
L            A


V
EN


U
E


MARIE  DRIVE


Lots 152, 153, 154, 155, and 156 of the plat of Seventh Addition to Norse View 
Heights, together with and being part of the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4
of Section 32, T.6N., R.11E., City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin


Driveway access 
for lot 1 and 2


10'easement on
lot 152 and
future lot 1. 20'
wide trail
easment in total


Multi Use Trail/
Green space
using existing
ROW 60'


Parkland
Dedication for
Trail







Parcels


Future Trail to
State Park


Boardwalk with
Observation
Deck


Trail connection
will complete a
loop around river


Storm Water
pond with
fountain


Angled
Parking for
Baseball Park


Add two more
Baseball Fields


Relocate
playground
equipment from
Oak Knoll







Angled Parking


Lift Station


Future State
Park Trail
Connection


Parkland


20 unit Res.
1st Floor
Commercial


Mutli Use trail


8 Unit
TownHome


Two Story
Homes lots
42X100


20 ft Alley





		Map Trail NE side.pdf

		Norse View Heights trail map.pdf

		Trail Map Marie Dr ROW.pdf

		Trail Map North East.pdf

		Williams Dr concept map.pdf






Cr


ea Parks Friends Group Formation


Enter Company Name in cell B2.Stoughton Parks & Recreation


Enter the name of the Project Lead in cell B3. Enter the Project Start date in cell E3. Pooject Start: label is in cell C3.
Dan Glynn


Th


e
1


Ce 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26


Th


is
TASK


ASSIGNED


TO
PROGRESS START END M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S


Ce


ll Establishing the Group


Ce


ll Create a Core Group Dan & P&R Comm. 0% 7/1/18 7/31/18


R


o Hold a General Interest Meeting Dan & Core Group 0% 7/31/18 9/7/18


Contact Important People Dan & Core Group 0% 7/1/18 12/31/18


Additional Member Recruitment Dan & Core Group 0% 7/1/18 12/31/18


Host an Event Dan & Core Group 0% 12/31/18 3/1/19


Th


e Formalizing the Structure


Mission, Vision, and Goals Dan & Core Group 0% 10/1/18 11/1/18


Developing a Structure Dan & Core Group 0% 11/1/18 12/1/18


Developing By-Laws Dan & Core Group 0% 11/1/18 12/1/18


Electing Leadership Dan & Core Group 0% 12/1/18 12/31/18


Creating Interim Committees Dan & Core Group 0% 12/1/18 12/31/18


Creating Ad Hoc Committees Dan & Core Group 0% 12/1/18 12/31/18


Creating Standing Committees Dan & Core Group 0% 12/1/18 12/31/18


Sample phase title block
Fundraising


Develop Fundraising Plan Group 0% 1/1/19 3/1/19


Approaching Local Businesses 0% 2/1/19 3/31/19


Writing Grants 0% 2/1/19 12/31/19


Individual Donations 0% 2/1/19 12/31/19


Money Handling 0% 2/1/19 12/31/19


Becoming Tax-Exempt


Incorporate Dan 0% 3/1/19 5/31/18


Tax Exemption Forms Attorney or Accountant 0% 6/1/18 12/31/18


Federal & State Obligations Attorney or Accountant 0% 1/1/19 12/31/19


This is an empty row
Th


is
Insert new rows ABOVE this one


Project Start:


Display Week:
Jul 30, 2018 Aug 6, 2018 Aug 13, 2018 Aug 20, 2018


Sun, 7/1/2018


Jul 2, 2018 Jul 9, 2018 Jul 16, 2018 Jul 23, 2018








Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301


www.elsevier.com/locate/tra

Trails, lanes, or traffic: Valuing bicycle facilities
with an adaptive stated preference survey


Nebiyou Y. Tilahun a,*, David M. Levinson b,1, Kevin J. Krizek c,2


a Department of Civil Engineering, University of Minnesota, 500 Pillsbury Drive SE, Minneapolis, MN 55455, USA
b Department of Civil Engineering, Director, Networks, Economics and Urban Systems (NEXUS) Research Group,


University of Minnesota, 500 Pillsbury Drive SE, Minneapolis, MN 55455, USA
c Urban and Regional Planning Program Director, Active Communities Transportation (ACT), Research Group,


University of Minnesota, 301 19th, Ave S., Minneapolis, MN 55455, USA


Received 4 April 2005; received in revised form 28 April 2006; accepted 12 September 2006

Abstract


This study evaluates individual preferences for five different cycling environments by trading off a better facility with a
higher travel time against a less attractive facility at a lower travel time. The tradeoff of travel time to amenities of a par-
ticular facility informs our understanding of the value attached to different attributes such as bike-lanes, off-road trails, or
side-street parking. The facilities considered here are off-road facilities, in-traffic facilities with bike-lane and no on-street
parking, in-traffic facilities with a bike-lane and on-street parking, in-traffic facilities with no bike-lane and no on-street
parking and in-traffic facilities with no bike-lane but with parking on the side. We find that respondents are willing to travel
up to twenty minutes more to switch from an unmarked on-road facility with side parking to an off-road bicycle trail, with
smaller changes associated with less dramatic improvements.
� 2006 Elsevier Ltd. All rights reserved.


Keywords: Bicycling; Stated preference; Adaptive stated preference; Bike-lane; Trail

1. Introduction


If bicycling is to be a viable mode of transportation, it must have appropriate facilities. Evaluating what is
appropriate requires an understanding of preferences for different types of cycling facilities. In this study we
explore and provide a quantitative evaluation of individual preferences for different cycling facility attributes.
This understanding can be incorporated into an evaluation of what facilities are warranted for given
conditions.

0965-8564/$ - see front matter � 2006 Elsevier Ltd. All rights reserved.


doi:10.1016/j.tra.2006.09.007


* Corresponding author. Tel.: +1 612 626 0024; fax: +1 612 626 7750.
E-mail addresses: tila0006@umn.edu (N.Y. Tilahun), levin031@umn.edu (D.M. Levinson), kjkrizek@umn.edu (K.J. Krizek).


1 Tel.: +1 612 625 6354; fax: +1 612 626 7750.
2 Tel.: +612 625 7318; fax: 612 625 3513.



mailto:tila0006@umn.edu

mailto:levin031@umn.edu

mailto:kjkrizek@umn.edu





288 N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301

The facilities considered here are: (A) Off-road facilities, (B) In-traffic facilities with bike-lane and no on-
street parking, (C) In-traffic facilities with a bike-lane and on-street parking, (D) In-traffic facilities with no
bike-lane and no on-street parking, and (E) In-traffic facilities with no bike-lane but with on-street parking.
The aim is to understand what feature people desire by quantifying how many additional minutes of travel
they would be willing to expend if these features were to be available. This added travel time is the price that
individuals are willing to pay for the perceived safety and comfort the attributes provide.


A computer based adaptive stated preference survey was developed and administered to collect data for this
study. To understand if the value that people attach to attributes of facilities is systematically related to dif-
ferent individual and social characteristics, the study has also collected demographic, socioeconomic, house-
hold, and current travel mode information from each participant. This information is then used to build an
empirical model to evaluate relationships between these independent variables and the additional travel time
that people are willing to expend for different attributes of cycling facilities. In addition to giving a measure of
the appeal of the attributes under discussion, the model also highlights the social and individual factors that
are important to consider in evaluating what facilities to provide.


Interest in studying bicyclists and cycling environments is growing. Recent papers by a number of authors
have investigated preferences of cyclists and the bicycling environment as well as the relationship between the
supply and use of facilities. Availability of cycling facilities and the type and quality of a cycling facility are
important determinants of how well they are used. Studies by Dill and Carr (2003), Nelson and Allen (1997)
have shown that there is a positive correlation between the number of facilities that are provided and the
percentage of people that use bicycling for commuting purposes. While both studies state that causality
cannot be proved from the data, Nelson and Allen (1997) state that in addition to having bicycle facilities,
facilities must connect appropriate origins and destinations to encourage cycling as an alternative commuting
mode.


Stated Preference has been used to analyze bicycle route choice in the city of Delft. Their work looked at
facility type, surface quality, traffic levels and travel time in route choice. Bovy and Bradley’s (1985) work
found that travel time was the most important factor in route choice followed by surface type. Another study
by Hopkinson and Wardman (1996) investigated the demand for cycling facilities using stated preference in a
route choice context. They found that individuals were willing to pay a premium to use facilities that are
deemed safer. The authors argue that increasing safety is likely more important than reducing travel time
to encourage bicycling.


Abraham et al. (2004) also investigated cyclist preferences for different attributes using a SP survey in the
context of route choice. Respondents were given three alternate routes and their attributes and were then
asked to rank the alternatives. The responses were analyzed using a logit choice model. Among other variables
that were of interest to their study, the authors found that cyclists prefer off-street cycling facilities and low-
traffic residential streets. But the authors also claim that this may be due to an incorrect perception of safety
on the part of the respondents, and education about the safety of off-road facilities may change the stated
choice.


Proximity to an off-road bicycle trail plays in route choice decisions. Using intercept surveys along the
Burke-Gilman trail in Seattle, Shafizadeh and Niemeier (1997) find that among people who reported origins
near the off-road facility, travel time gradually increases as they are further from trail to a point and then
decreases, leading them to speculate that there may be a 0.5–0.75 mile ‘‘bike shed’’ around an off-road bike
path, within which individuals will be willing to increase their travel time to access that facility and outside
of which a more direct route seems to be preferred.


Aultman-Hall et al. (1997) use GIS to investigate bicycle commuter routes in Guelph, Canada. While com-
paring the shortest path to the path actually taken, they found that people diverted very little from the shortest
path and that most bicycle commuters use major road routes. They found little use of off-road trails. While
this may be due to the location of the trails and the O–D pair they connect, even in five corridors where com-
parably parallel off-road facilities do exist to in-traffic alternatives, they found that commuters used the in-
traffic facilities much more often. Only the direct highest quality off-road facility (one that is ‘‘wide with a
good quality surface and extends long distance with easy access points’’) seemed to be used relatively more.


Web based stated preference survey’s have been used to estimate a logit model to understand important
attributes for commuter cyclist route choice. Stinson and Bhat (2003) find that respondents preferred bicycling







N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301 289

on residential streets to non residential streets, likely because of the low traffic volumes on residential streets.
While their model showed that the most important variable in route preference was travel time, the facility was
also significant. It was shown that cyclists preferred in-traffic bike-lanes more than off-road facilities. Both
facility types had a positive effect on utility but the former added more to utility than the latter. In addition
they find that cyclists try to avoid links with on-street parking. Another study by Taylor and Mahmassani
(1996) also using a SP survey to investigate bike and ride options, finds that bike-lanes provide greater incen-
tives to inexperienced cyclists (defined as those with a ‘‘stated low to moderate comfort levels riding in light
traffic’’) as compared with more experienced cyclists, with the latter group not showing a significant preference
to bike-lanes over wide curb lanes.


The results from these papers seem somewhat mixed. Though some of the research has shown a stated pref-
erence and revealed preference with some constraints for off-road facilities, others have shown that cyclists
generally prefer in-traffic cycling facilities with bike-lanes. Especially in revealed preference cases, the apparent
preference for in-traffic routes may be due to their ability to connect to many destinations in a more direct
fashion and therefore leading to a lower travel time. In addition route choice may be restricted by facility
availability, geographic features or missing information. It may also be that for people who regularly bicycle,
who are most likely the subjects of the revealed preference studies, travel time and not perceived safety are
likely of utmost importance, as these individuals are more likely to be conditioned to the cycling environment.
The actual preference therefore may not be for the in-traffic facility; however, it may be the best alternative
available to the cyclists.


Commuter choices are clearly limited by facilities that are available to them. Understanding preferences
and behavior is crucial to providing choices that people desire. This can be best accomplished when the value
of any given improvement in facility attribute is known. Valuation of facility attributes can be done by con-
sidering what people are willing to pay for using these facilities. In this study we try to uncover this value by
measuring how much additional time individuals would be willing to spend bicycling between a given origin
and destination if alternate facilities with certain attributes were available to them.


In the next section we present the methodology in detail. This is followed by a description of the survey
instrument and design. The analysis methodology is presented, and then the results.


2. Methodology


The methodology we follow to extract this valuation of attributes uses an adaptive stated preference (ASP)
survey. While both revealed and stated preference data can be used to analyze preferences, there are certain
advantages to using the latter method in this case. In using consumer revealed preference, often, a limitation
arises because only the final consumer choice is observed. This makes it difficult to ascertain how consumers
came to their final decision. This complication arises because the number of choices that are available to each
consumer may be very large and information on those alternatives that went into an individual’s decision may
not be fully known. Even in cases where all possible alternatives are known, it is difficult to assess whether the
decision makers considered all available alternatives. In addition, the exact tradeoff of interest may not be
readily available. Even in cases where the tradeoffs seem to be available, one cannot be certain that the con-
sumer is acting out his preference for the attributes we are observing. The lack of appropriate data can pose a
major challenge in this respect.


Stated preference surveys overcome these complications because the experimenter controls the choices. In
SP settings, the experimenter determines the choices and the respondent considers. While this may not reflect
the actual market choice that individual would make because of the constraints the survey places on the choice
set, it allows us to measure attribute differences between the presented alternatives. Further, by using special-
ized forms of SP such as adaptive stated preference (ASP) one can measure the exact value individuals attach
to attributes of interest. In this type of survey each option is presented based on choices the respondent has
already made. This allows for the presentation of choices that the individual can actually consider while
removing alternatives that the respondent will surely not consider. This methodology has been adopted in
a number of contexts, including value of time for commercial vehicle operators (Smalkoski and Levinson,
2005), in mode choice experiments (Bergantino and Bolis, 2002), and in evaluating transit improvements
(Falzarno et al., 2000) among others.







290 N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301

3. Survey instrument, design and administration


All respondents of the ASP survey were given nine presentations that compared two facilities at a time.
Each presentation asks the respondent to choose between two bicycle facilities. The respondent is told that
the trip is a work commute and the respective travel time they would experience for each facility is given. Each
facility is presented using a 10 s video clip taken from the bicyclists’ perspective. The clips loop three times and
the respondent is able to replay the clip if they wish.


Each facility is compared with all other facilities that are theoretically of lesser quality. For example, an off-
road facility (A) is compared with a bike-lane no on-street parking facility (B), a bike-lane with parking facility
(C), a no bike-lane no parking facility (D) and a no bike-lane with parking facility (E). Similarly, the four
other facilities (B, C, D and E) are each compared with those facilities that are theoretically deemed of a lesser
quality. The less attractive of the two facilities is assigned a lower travel time and the alternate (higher quality)
path is assigned a higher travel time. The respondent goes through four iterations per presentation with travel
time for the more attractive facility being changed according to the previous choice. The first choice set within
each presentation assigns the lesser quality facility a 20 min travel time and the alternate (higher quality) path
a 40 min travel time. Travel time for the higher quality facility increases if the respondent chose that facility
and it decreases if the less attractive facility was selected. A bisection algorithm works between 20 and 60 min
either raising or lowering the travel time for the alternate path so that it becomes less attractive if it was chosen
or more attractive if the shortest path was chosen. By the fourth iteration, the algorithm converges on the

Fig. 1. Cycling facilities used in the study (A) Off-road bicycle facility. (B) Bike-lane, no parking. (C) Bike-lane, on-street parking.
(D) Bike-lane, no parking. (E) No bike-lane, on-street parking.







Fig. 2. Location of facilities used in the adaptive stated preference survey Note: (A) off-road facility; (B) bike-lane, no parking facility;
(C) a bike-lane, on-street parking facility; (D) a no bike-lane, no parking facility; (E) a no bike-lane, on-street parking facility.


N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301 291

maximum time difference where the respondent will choose the better facility. This way the respondent’s time
value for a particular bicycling environment can be estimated by identifying the maximum time difference
between the two route choices that they will still choose the more attractive facility. Pictures of these facilities
are shown on Fig. 1. Fig. 2 maps the locations of the facilities where the videos were taken in St. Paul,
Minnesota.


The procedure used to converge on the time trade-off for the particular facility is illustrated as follows. If
the subject first chose the longer option, then the next choice set assigns a higher travel time for the higher
quality path (raised from 40 min to 50 min). If the respondent still chooses the longer option, the travel time
for that choice increases to 55 min and the choice is posed again. If on the other hand, the 50 min option is

Table 1
Facility pairs compared in the ASP survey


Alternate routes Base route


B Bike-lane, no
parking


C Bike-lane with on-street
parking


D No bike-lane, no
parking


E No bike-lane with
on-street parking


A off-road T1 T2 T3 T4


B Bike-lane, no parking N/A T5 T6 T7


C Bike-lane with on-street
parking


N/A N/A N/A T8


D No bike-lane, no parking N/A N/A N/A T9


Ti represents the average additional travel time user are willing to travel.







Table 2
Choice order for a sample presentation


Presentation Facility travel time Choice


Route 1 (min) Route 2 (min)


Choice set 1 40 20 Route 2
Choice set 2 30 20 Route 1
Choice set 3 35 20 Route 1
Choice set 4 37 20 Route 2
Ti 36


292 N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301

rejected and the respondent chose the 20 min route, the bisection algorithm will calculate a travel time that is
between the now rejected option and the previously accepted option, in this case 45 min. By the time the
respondent makes a fourth choice, the survey will have either narrowed down the respondents’ preference
to within two minutes or the respondent has hit the maximum travel time that can be assigned to the longer
trip, which is 58.5 min. Table 1 shows the pairs of comparisons that were conducted and used in the analysis.
Table 2 shows a sample series of travel time presentations and Fig. 3a and b shows sample screenshots of the
survey instrument.


The survey was administered in two waves, once during winter and once during summer. The winter and
summer respondents were shown video clips that reflected the season at the time of the survey taken at approx-
imately the same location. Our sample for both waves was compromised of employees from the University of
Minnesota, excluding students and faculty. Invitations were sent out to 2500 employees, randomly selected
from an employee database, indicating that we would like them to participate in a computer based survey
about their commute to work and offering $15 for participation. Participants were asked to come to a central
testing station, where the survey was being administered. A total of 90 people participated in the winter survey
and another 91 people participated in the summer survey, making a total of 181 people. Among these 13 peo-
ple had to be removed due to incomplete information leaving 167 people. Of these 167, 68 people indicated
that they have bicycled to work at least once in the past year. Thirty eight of these sixty eight identified them-
selves as regular bicycle commuters at least during the summer. Also, 127 of the 167 people said they have
bicycled to somewhere including work in the past year. Further demographic information on the respondents
is given in Table 3.

4. Model specification and results


4.1. Switching point analysis


The adaptive nature of the survey allows us to extract the actual additional minutes each individual is will-
ing to travel on an alternate facility. In the context of the survey, this is the maximum travel time beyond
which the subject would switch to use the lesser quality facility. For each pair of facilities that are compared
during the summer and the winter, the averages of this switching point are computed and plotted in Fig. 4. On
average, individuals are willing to travel more on an alternate facility when the base facility is E (undesignated
with on-street parking), followed by D (no bike-lane without parking) and C (bike-lane with parking). For
example individuals are willing to travel further on facility B when the base facility is E, as opposed to D
or C.


Fig. 4 shows the hierarchy between facilities clearly – each of the lines plotted connects the average of the
maximum additional travel time that each individual is willing to bicycle over the 20 min that the base facility
would have provided. For example, looking at the winter data, the top solid line connects the average of the
maximum additional time individuals say they would travel on an alternate facility when the base facility is E
(in-traffic with parking at 20 min). The alternate facilities are as shown on the horizontal axis. For example,
looking at the aggregate data, on average subjects are willing to travel about 23 additional minutes if an
off-road bike-lane was available if the alternative was to bike in traffic with side parking. We can further







Fig. 3. (a) (top) Comparing designated bicycle lanes with no parking with in-traffic bicycling with no parking and (b) (bottom) Same
presentation three iterations later.


N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301 293

approximate the sampling distribution for the mean additional travel time between each pair of facilities by
employing methods such as the bootstrap.


The bootstrap, which was first developed by Efron in 1979 (Efron and Tibshirani, 1993), approximates
the sampling distribution of the mean by repeatedly sampling with replacement from the original sample
and calculating the mean of the resamples. The distribution of the means from the re-sampled data is then







Table 3
Demographic distribution of respondents


Number of subjects 167


Sex
% Male 34.5%
% Female 65.5%


Age Mean (Standard deviation) 44.19 (10.99)
Usual mode (Year round)


% Car 69.7%
% Bus 18.5%
% Bike 9.2%
% Walk 2.6%


Bike commuter
All season 9.2%
Summer 22.6%


HH income
<$30,000 8.3%
$30,000–$45,000 14.3%
$45,000–$60,000 19.6%
$60,000–$75,000 15.5%
$75,000–$100,000 20.2%
$100,000–$150,000 17.9%
>$150,000 4.2%


HH Size
1 25.0%
2 32.7%
3 16.7%
4 20.8%
>4 4.8%


294 N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301

used to estimate a new mean and to approximate the variability of this estimated mean about the true
mean. Here we employ the non-parametric bootstrap, which makes no prior assumptions on the distribu-
tion of the statistic. Once the resamples are made, and the means are calculated, one can build a confi-
dence interval around the point estimate using the 95 percentiles of the calculated means or using a
normal approximation if it is deemed appropriate based on the observed distribution of the bootstrapped
mean. The bootstrap analysis is implemented in R using the boot library (R Development Core Team,
2004).


Consider the histogram shown in Fig. 5a, it reflects the maximum additional travel time individuals are will-
ing to give for facility A (an off-road trail) if their alternative was facility C (an in traffic facility with a bike
lane and parking). Employing the non-parametric bootstrap on this data with 5000 resamples, with each
resample having 167 elements, we can see that the bootstrap distribution of the mean is very close to normal
(Fig. 5b). The bootstrap distributions of all nine pairs of comparisons lead to symmetric distributions that
show no evidence of non-normality. The percentile confidence interval based on the actual 2.5% and 97.5%
values of the bootstrapped mean, as well as a normal 95% confidence interval are computed for each pair
of comparisons. From Table 4, it can be seen that the 95% normal interval and the ordered 95 percentile
around the mean are almost the same.


The bootstrap also allows us to estimate the bias of the sample mean by the difference of the mean from the
original sample and the bootstrap mean. For each pair of comparisons, the bias in the mean is also found to be
very small, being consistently less than 3/100th of a minute. The sample mean, the estimate of the bias and
the confidence interval (CI) using the normal distribution and the percentile of the bootstrap are reported
in Table 4 for each pair of comparisons both for the combined and season specific data.


4.2. Model specification


We start with the economic paradigm of a utility maximizing individual, where given a bundle of goods the
individual chooses that bundle which results in the highest possible utility from the choice set. In the current







Maximum Additional Travel Time Between Facility Pairs (Combined Data)


0.00


5.00


10.00


15.00


20.00


25.00


A B C D


Tr
av


el
 T


im
e B


C
D
E


Maximum Additional Travel Time Between Facility Pairs (Winter Data)


0.00


5.00


10.00


15.00


20.00


25.00


Tr
av


el
 T


im
e


A B C D


B
C
D
E


Maximum Additional Travel Time Between Facility Pairs (Summer Data)


0.00


5.00


10.00


15.00


20.00


25.00


30.00


A B C D


Alternate Facility


Tr
av


el
 T


im
e B


C
D
E


Base
Facility


Base
Facility


Base
Facility


Alternate Facility


Alternate Facility


Fig. 4. Hierarchy of Facilities. Note: (A) off-road facility; (B) bike-lane, no parking facility; (C) a bike-lane, on-street parking facility;
(D) a no bike-lane, no parking facility; (E) a no bike-lane, on-street parking facility.


N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301 295

context then, given two alternatives A and B, the chosen alternative is the one that the subject derives a higher
utility from. We can then break down each bundled alternative to its components to understand what amount
each contributes to utility. This will enable us to extract the contribution of each feature of the facility in the
choice consideration of the individual. Mathematically, we would state this as alternative A is selected if UA is
greater than UB, where A and B are the alternatives and U is the utility function.







Fr
eq


ue
nc


y


14 16 18 20


0
10


0
20


0
30


0
40


0


time time


Fr
eq


ue
nc


y


0 10 20 30 40


0
10


15
20


25
30


35
5


Fig. 5. (a) Distribution of the additional travel time for facility C over facility A and (b) The bootstrapped mean for the additional travel
time between facilities A and C (based on 5000 resamples).


Table 4
Mean additional travel time between facility pairs and confidence interval of the bootstrapped distribution of the mean


Fac 1 Fac 2 Original mean Bias Standard error Normal 95% CI Percentile 95% CI


Combined data


A B 14.21 0.0223 0.962 (12.30, 16.08) (12.41, 16.17)
A C 16.00 0.0136 0.964 (14.10, 17.88) (14.16, 17.92)
A D 18.46 �0.0160 0.984 (16.55, 20.41) (16.58, 20.40)
A E 23.14 �0.0051 0.939 (21.30, 24.98) (21.26, 24.94)
B C 10.13 0.0092 0.973 (8.21, 12.03) (8.25, 12.06)
B D 13.73 �0.0008 0.957 (11.85, 15.61) (11.90, 15.62)
B E 20.87 0.0245 0.956 (18.97, 22.72) (19.09, 22.84)
C E 19.65 �0.0033 0.950 (17.79, 21.51) (17.79, 21.49)
D E 18.25 0.0211 1.002 (16.27, 20.20) (16.35, 20.22)


Winter data


A B 15.33 0.0208 1.335 (12.69, 17.92) (12.78, 18.00)
A C 13.69 0.0339 1.327 (11.06, 16.26) (11.21, 16.40)
A D 17.57 �0.0252 1.344 (14.96, 20.23) (14.99, 20.19)
A E 20.66 �0.0025 1.319 (18.08, 23.25) (18.16, 23.28)
B C 6.17 �0.0064 1.197 (3.83, 8.52) (3.97, 8.57)
B D 10.86 �0.0244 1.180 (8.57, 13.19) (8.58, 13.25)
B E 17.45 �0.0101 1.248 (15.02, 19.91 ) (15.02, 19.91)
C E 17.39 �0.0097 1.264 (14.92, 19.87) (14.98, 19.92)
D E 15.72 0.0074 1.270 (13.22, 18.20) (13.22, 18.22)


Summer data


A B 13.04 �0.0051 1.338 (10.43, 15.67) (10.49, 15.74)
A C 18.43 0.0146 1.353 (15.76, 21.07) (15.84, 21.16)
A D 19.40 0.0079 1.434 (16.58, 22.20) (16.58, 22.25)
A E 25.73 �0.0071 1.292 (23.21, 28.27) (23.18, 28.27)
B C 14.28 0.0154 1.397 (11.53, 17.01) (11.63, 17.10)
B D 16.75 �0.0128 1.481 (13.86, 19.66) (13.89, 19.68)
B E 24.46 �0.0072 1.332 (21.85, 27.07) (21.78, 27.06)
C E 22.03 0.0013 1.403 (19.27, 24.77) (19.30, 24.82)
D E 20.92 �0.0055 1.485 (18.01, 23.83) (17.96, 23.82)


296 N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301

We hypothesize that the utility a user derives from using a bicycle facility depends on the features of the
facility and the expected travel time on the facility. Choices are also affected by individual characteristics that







N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301 297

we may not directly observe, but can try to estimate using individual specific variables such as income, sex,
age, etc. As discussed earlier, each individual records a response over various alternatives and therefore the
data reflects the repeated choices over the same subject. This implies that the errors are no longer indepen-
dently distributed. To overcome this problem, we can specify a generalized linear mixed model (GLMM) that
addresses the ‘within subject’ and ‘between subject’ errors separately (Agresti, 2002). These models take the
repeated nature of the responses into consideration, and account for differences between individuals that
reflect taste heterogeneity. In addition to separating the within subject and between subject errors, using
GLMM ensures that the correct error terms are estimated for hypothesis tests. The data analysis for this sec-
tion is done using SAS/PROC NLMIXED software (SAS Institute, 2004).


The specification for the mixed logit model is as follows. If we let Yij be the response of individual i on
choice j, and bi be the random term associated with individual i, then for each choice presentation, we can
write:

ðY ij=biÞ � binomial ð1; pijÞ


logitðpijÞ ¼ U ij þ bi


bi � Nð0; r2Þ

where U is the linear utility derived from each alternative and based on which the choice is made. The utility of
each alternative is defined in terms of the attributes of the facility. In addition, we are also interested in trends
that can be explained by individual specific variables. The linear component is then defined as follows:

U ¼ f ðFacility; Travel Time; Season; Individual VariablesÞ


The utility of a particular alternative j for individual i can be written as

U ij ¼ V ij þ eij


V ij ¼ b0 þ b1W ij þ b2Oij þ b3Bij þ b4P ij þ b5T ij þ b6Si þ b7Ai þ b8I i þ b9H i þ b10Ci

Where:


W Weather (winter = 1, summer = 0)
O Dummy indicating whether the facility is off-road (1 = Yes, 0 = No)
B Dummy indicating whether the facility has a bike-lane (1 = Yes, 0 = No)
P Dummy indicating whether the facility allows vehicle parking (1 = absent, 0 = present)
T Expected travel time on the facility being considered
S Sex (Male = 1, Female = 0)
A Age
I Median household income for the reported income range (Inc/1000)
H Dummy for household Size (hhsize > 2 = 1, Otherwise = 0)
C Cyclist at least during summer (Yes = 1, No = 0)
e Gumbel (0, k)


To interpret the model appropriately it is important to note how the dummy variables are coded (Table 5).
Variable B represents whether a facility has a designated bike-lane, O represents whether the facility is off-
road, and P represents whether a facility has no parking adjacent to it. This would allow separately valuing
bike-lanes as well as being off-road. It should be observed that ‘O’ is not equivalent to an off-road trail. ‘B’, ‘O’
and ‘P’ together constitute an off-road trail.


The parameter estimates of binomial logit model are given in Table 6. The model is estimated such that the
predicted probabilities reflect the odds of choosing the theoretically better facility. The model suggests that
there is significant subject-to-subject heterogeneity supporting the use of a mixed model (r = 1.27, CI (1.10,
1.44)). The signs of the estimated parameters are as expected. The travel time is negative showing an aversion
to longer trips. The improvements (off-road, bike-lane and no parking) all have a positive and significant influ-
ence on choice of different magnitudes. Of these three, for a given individual, a bike-lane improvement







Table 5
Coding for facility features


Facility O B P


A (Off-road) 1 1 1
B (Bike-lane, No parking) 0 1 1
C (Bike-lane, on-street parking) 0 1 0
D (In traffic, No parking) 0 0 1
E (In traffic, on-street parking) 0 0 0


Table 6
Generalized mixed logit model


Parameter Estimate Standard error t-Value Pr > jtj 95% CI


Lower Upper


r Subject random effect SD (r) 1.271 0.088 14.51 <0.0001 1.10 1.44
b0 Intercept 0.166 0.284 0.58 0.560 �0.396 0.727
b1 (W) Season (1 = winter, 0 = summer) �0.582 0.209 �2.79 0.006 �0.994 �0.170
b2 (0) Offroad Improvement? 0.260 0.060 4.33 <0.0001 0.141 0.378
b3 (P) Parking improvement? 0.474 0.065 7.34 <0.0001 0.346 0.602
b4 (B) Bikelane improvement? 0.838 0.067 12.51 <0.0001 0.706 0.971
b5 (T) Travel time �0.052 0.004 �12.11 <0.0001 �0.060 �0.043
b6 (S) Sex (1 = M, 0 = F) �0.405 0.225 �1.80 0.073 �0.849 0.038
b7 (A) Age �0.001 0.001 �1.16 0.248 �0.002 0.001
b8 (I) Income/1000 0.007 0.003 2.51 0.013 0.002 0.013
b9 (H) HHsize(1 if >2, 0 otherwise) �0.693 0.227 �3.06 0.003 �1.141 �0.246
b10 (C) Cyclist (l = atleast summer, 0 = No) �0.094 0.257 �0.36 0.716 �0.602 0.414


Fit Statistics


�2Log Likelihood 7266.1 Observations 6012
AIC 7290.1 Subjects 167
BIC 7327.4 Observations/subject 36


298 N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301

increases the odds of choosing the higher quality path much more than parking elimination or that of an off-
road improvement alone.


The season variable is negative and significant, indicating that given all other attributes are held the same,
people have lower odds of choosing the better facility during winter than during summer (p-value = 0.006).
The model suggests that individuals from higher income households have a higher odds of choosing the better
facility given all other variables are held constant (p-value = 0.013). Sex and Age are not significant at the 0.05
level, however the sign for sex indicates that women have a higher tendency to choose the facilities that are
perceived safer (better quality) than men (p-value = 0.073). The cyclist variable, which indicates if the subject
uses bicycling as their main mode at least during summer, is highly insignificant; indicating that preferences
are not dictated by experience at least in this SP context. Also individuals whose household size is greater than
two have lower odds of choosing the better quality, longer travel time facility (p-value = 0.003). This may be
because these individuals have higher constraints on their time than individuals who live in single or two per-
son households.


The estimated logit model based on utility theory can be used to determine the time value of a facility being
off-road, a bike-lane improvement or the removal of parking. These are derived using the marginal rate of
substitution between each of the facility features and travel time. These values are derived based on SP ques-
tions that have a 20 min base travel time, and should be interpreted as such. Accordingly, a bike-lane improve-
ment is valued at 16.41 (CI (13.25, 19.56)) minutes, a no parking improvement is valued at 9.27 (CI (6.59,
11.94)) minutes and an off-road improvement is valued at 5.13 (CI (2.76, 7.49)) minutes. This is to say, for
a given individual, keeping utility at the same level, one can exchange the off-road improvement for 5.13 min-
utes of travel time, a bike-lane for 16.41 min of travel time and a no parking improvement for 9.27 min of
travel time. This says that the most value is attached to having a designated bike lane. While having an







Table 7
Time values of facility attributes


Attribute Calculated Estimate Standard error t-Value Pr > jtj 95% CI


Lower Upper


O Offstreet �b2/b5 5.13 1.20 4.27 <0.0001 2.76 7.49
P Parking improvement �b3/b5 9.27 1.36 6.83 <0.0001 6.59 11.94
B Bikelane improvement �b4/b5 16.41 1.60 10.27 <0.0001 13.25 19.56


N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301 299

off-road facility would certainly increase the utility of the individual, most of the gains of an off-road facility
seem to be derived from the fact that such facilities provide a designated bike lane. The absence of parking is
also valued more than taking the facility off-road Table 7.


4.3. Switching point analysis


An alternate specification of the model looks at time as a dependent variable, and features of the facility as
independent variables along with demographic covariates. The dependent variable is the maximum additional
minutes individuals would be willing to travel for attributes of an alternate facility. This is the switching point
beyond which individuals would take the lesser quality facility. This specification employs a linear mixed mod-
els approach to account for the repeated measurements taken over the same subject as was done in the bino-
mial logit case. This approach yields similar patterns in the order of valuation of the different attributes of the
facilities and the expected directions of the parameter estimates. The results of this model are reported in Table
8.


4.4. Comparison


A side by side comparison of the logit and linear models is not possible; however, we can compare the val-
ues derived for different facility pairs based on the logit model and the linear model for a given individual. This
is given in Table 9 and Fig. 6. As can be seen from Table 9, most comparisons have confidence intervals that
overlap, however the estimates from the logit model are more narrowly estimated as compared to the linear
model. In addition, the logit model confidence intervals as well as point estimates closely approximate what is
observed in the row data. For instance, between facilities A and D, the logit model estimates a 21.5 min (CI
(17.1, 25.9)) value while the mean from the raw data is 19.4 min (CI (16.6, 22.2)).

Table 8
Linear model


Parameter Estimate Standard error t-Value Pr > jtj 95% CI


Lower Upper


r Subject random effect SD (r) 8.913 0.512 17.39 0.000 7.91 10.05
b0 Intercept 5.794 3.285 1.76 0.078 �0.651 12.239
b1 (W) Season (1 = winter, 0 = summer) �3.833 1.460 �2.63 0.010 �6.716 �0.950
b2 (0) Offroad improvement? 2.284 0.421 5.43 0.000 1.459 3.109
b3 (P) Parking improvement? 3.520 0.447 7.88 0.000 2.644 4.397
b4 (B) Bikelane improvement? 5.820 0.447 13.03 0.000 4.943 6.696
b5 (S) Sex (1 = M, 0 = F) �3.327 1.574 �2.11 0.036 �6.435 �0.218
b6 (A) Age 0.161 0.070 2.32 0.022 0.024 0.299
b7 (I) Income/1000 0.032 0.021 1.51 0.133 �0.010 0.073
b8 (H) HHsize (1 if >2, 0 otherwise) �3.748 1.606 �2.33 0.021 �6.920 �0.577
b9 (C) Cyclist (1 = atleast summer, 0 = No) �2.038 1.798 �1.13 0.259 �5.590 1.513


Fit statistics


�2Log Likelihood 10838.824 Observations 1503
AIC 10862.82 Subjects 167
BIC 10926.45 Observations/subject 9







Table 9
Comparison of travel time values between facilities using the linear model and the logit model


Facilities
compared


Logit
model


Logit model
CI


Linear
model


Linear model CI Mean (aggregate raw
data)


Bootstrap 95%
Normal CI


A vs B 5.1 (2.8, 7.5) 8.1 (1.7, 14.6) 13.0 (10.4, 15.7)
A vs C 14.4 (10.5, 18.3) 11.6 (5.2, 18.1) 18.4 (15.8, 21.1)
A vs D 21.5 (17.1, 25.9) 13.9 (7.5, 20.4) 19.4 (16.6, 22.2)
A vs E 30.8 (24.7, 36.9) 17.4 (11.0, 23.9) 25.7 (23.2, 28.3)
B vs C 9.3 (6.6, 11.9) 9.3 (2.9, 15.8) 14.3 (11.5, 17.0)
B vs D 16.4 (13.3, 19.6) 11.6 (5.2, 18.1) 16.7 (13.9, 19.7)
B vs E 25.7 (20.6, 30.7) 15.1 (8.7, 21.6) 24.5 (21.9, 27.1)
C vs E 16.4 (13.3, 19.6) 11.6 (5.2, 18.1) 22.0 (19.3, 24.8)
D vs E 9.3 (6.6, 11.9) 9.3 (2.9, 15.8) 20.9 (18.0, 23.8)


Time Value of Facilities using Alternate Models


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


35


A 
vs


 B


A 
vs


 C


A 
vs


 D


A 
vs


 E


B 
vs


 C


B 
vs


 D


B 
vs


 E


C
 v


s 
E


D
 v


s 
E


Compared Facilities


Es
tim


at
ed


 T
im


e 
Va


lu
e 


be
tw


ee
n


Fa
ci


lit
ie


s


logit model


linear model


raw data


Fig. 6. Comparison of the estimates of the additional time willing to travel between facility pairs based on logit model, linear model and
the raw data.


300 N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301

The overall assessment of the models suggests that designated bike lanes seem to be what are most desired.
It is also important to consider that both the linear and logit models found no evidence against the hypothesis
that preferences between cyclists and non-cyclists are the same. This is encouraging in many respects, because
it avoids the dilemma of which interest to serve. The policy implication is that by addressing this common
preference, we can ensure cyclists receive the facilities they prefer and non-cyclists get the facilities that they
could at least consider as a viable alternative.

5. Conclusion


This paper analyzes preferences for different cycling facilities using a computer-based adaptive stated pref-
erence survey with first person videos. Using the survey on 167 randomly recruited individuals, we derive the
values that users attach to different cycling facility features and expose which are most important. The choice
data was collected based on individual preferences between different facilities having different travel times, but
the same origin and destination. From the raw data we have demonstrated that a hierarchy exists between the
facilities considered and we have extracted a measure of how many additional minutes an individual is willing
to expend on an alternate facility if it were available and provided certain features that were not available on
the base facility. The data was then used to fit a random parameter logit model using a utility maximizing
framework. A linear model was also estimated and compared to the results from the mixed logit model.







N.Y. Tilahun et al. / Transportation Research Part A 41 (2007) 287–301 301

The results show that users are willing to pay the highest price for designated bike-lanes, followed by the
absence of parking on the street and by taking a bike-lane facility off-road. In addition, we are able to extract
certain individual characteristics that are indicative of preferences such as age, household structure and loose
connections with sex and household income. Such an understanding can be incorporated into the planning
process to help planners make appropriate recommendations and investment decisions in developing bicycle
facilities that are more appealing to the public.


References


Abraham, J., McMillan, S., Brownlee, A., Hunt, J.D., 2004. Investigation of cycling sensitivities. Presented at 81st Annual Meeting of the
Transportation Research Board, Washington, DC.


Agresti, A., 2002. Categorical Data Analysis, second ed. John Wiley & Sons, Inc., Hoboken, New Jersey.
Aultman-Hall, L., Hall, F., Baetz, B., 1997. Analysis of bicycle commuter routes using geographic information systems: Implications for


bicycle planning. Transportation Research Record: Journal of the Transportation Research Board, No, 1578, TRB, National Research
Council, Washington, DC., pp. 102–110.


Bergantino, A., Bolis, S., 2002. An adaptive conjoint analysis of freight service alternatives: Evaluating the maritime option. In: IAME
2002 Conference Proceedings, Panama.


Bovy, P., Bradley, P., 1985. Route choice analyzed with stated preference approaches. Transportation Research Record 1037, TRB,
National Research Council, Washington, DC.


Dill, J., Carr, T., 2003. Bicycle commuting and facilities in major U.S. cities: If you build them, commuters will use them – another look.
CD-ROM. Transportation Research Board, National Research Council, Washington, DC.


Efron, B., Tibshirani, R., 1993. An Introduction to the Bootstrap. Chapman and Hall, New York.
Falzarno, S., Hazlett, R., Adler, T., 2000. Quantifying the value of transit station and access improvements for Chicago’s rapid transit


system. Presented at 80th Annual Meeting of the Transportation Research Board, Washington, DC.
Hopkinson, P., Wardman, M., 1996. Evaluating the demand for new cycle facilities. Transport Policy 2 (4), 241–249.
Nelson, A.C., Allen, D., 1997. If you build them, commuters will use them. Transportation Research Record: Journal of the


Transportation Research Board, No, 1578, TRB, National Research Council, Washington, DC., pp. 79–83.
R Development Core Team 2004. R: A language and environment for statistical computing. R Foundation for Statistical Computing,


Vienna, Austria. ISBN 3-900051-07-0, URL <http://www.R-project.org>.
SAS/NLMIXED software, Version 9 of the SAS System for Windows. Copyright � 2004 SAS Institute Inc., Cary, NC, USA.
Shafizadeh, K., Niemeier, D., 1997. Bicycle journey-to-work: travel behavior characteristics and spatial attributes. Transportation


Research Record: Journal of the Transportation Research Board, No. 1578, TRB, National Research Council, Washington, DC.,
pp. 84–90.


Smalkoski, B., Levinson, D., 2005. Value of time for commercial vehicle operators. JTRF 44 (1).
Stinson, A.S., Bhat, C.R., 2003. An Analysis of Commuter Bicyclist Route Choice Using a Stated Preference Survey. CD-ROM.


Transportation Research Board. National Research Council, Washington, DC.
Taylor, D., Mahmassani, H. 1996. Analysis of stated preference for intermodal bicycle-transit interfaces. In: Transportation Research


Record: Journal of the Transportation Research Board, No. 1556, TRB, National Research Council, Washington, DC., pp. 86–95.



http://www.R-project.org



		Trails, lanes, or traffic: Valuing bicycle facilities with an adaptive stated preference survey

		Introduction

		Methodology

		Survey instrument, design and administration

		Model specification and results

		Switching point analysis

		Model specification

		Switching point analysis

		Comparison



		Conclusion

		References








Park & Open Space Plan – Public Input Plan


Included in the Ayres Proposal:


Online Survey and Community Comment Portal


Workshop with Stakeholders and Staff


Public Information Meeting (Open House)


Outreach - Online Survey


- Email to identified community organizations


- Have the Hub publish a link to the survey


- Stoughton Recreation Email Blast


- Social Media – Facebook Pages, Stoughton Neighborhood Group


Exhibits – Paper Copies of Survey


- 1-2 Farmers Markets


- 2-3 Gazebo Musikk Concerts


- School Registration Days (if allowed and works with timeline)


Workshop


- Stakeholders – Fair, Youth Sport Groups, Non-Sport Groups, Older Adults, Others?


Underrepresented Groups?







Organization Contact Person Email


Lions Club Kris Heckman kheckman@paasnational.com


Rotary Club Kris Krentz kkrentz@skaalen.com


Optimist Club Bryan Lemmenes Bryanjack5555@gmail.com


Kiwanis Club stoughton.kiwanis@gmail.com


Sustainable Stoughton sustainablestoughton@gmail.com


Ezra Church Tiffany Wogsland tiffany@ezra.church


Lakeview Church Andy Fuqua andy@lakevc.org


Covenant Lutheran Church Sara Rabe pastorsararabe@gmail.com


Stoughton Baptist Church Mark Weiss stoughtonbaptistchurch@gmail.com


Christ Lutheran Church Paula Geister-Jones pastorpaula@clcstoughton.org


Stoughton United Methodist Church office@stoughtonumc10.org


St Ann's Parish http://stannparish.weconnect.com/contact/index/id/1192


First Lutheran Church info@flcstoughton.com


Good Shephard by the Lake Lutheran Church Todd McVey pastortodd@tds.net


Stoughton Conservation Club Sccmembership@Stoughtoncc.com


Viking Snowdrifters Jeremiah Bennett jerbnntt@gmail.com


SAYSA Karina Clausen kjclausen@charter.net


SALL Sara Knickmeier sknickme@amfam.com


SABA Stephanie Wanninger wanninger4@charter.net


Youth Tackle Football stoughtonyouthfootball@gmail.com


Stoughton Lacrosse Wade Rewey wrewey@gmail.com


Stoughton Area Resource Team Cindy Thompson cthompson@startstoughton.org


Youth Center Parents Greg Hoyte ghoyte@ci.stoughton.wi.us


Kegonsa PTO Erin Conrad Erin.Conrad@stoughton.k12.wi.us


Sandhill PTO Jeff Fimreite Jeff.Fimreite@stoughton.k12.wi.us


Fox Prairie PTO Krista Huntley Rogers Krista.HuntleyRogers@stoughton.k12.wi.us


River Bluff PTO Trish Gates Trish.Gates@stoughton.k12.wi.us


Martin Luther PTO info@martinlutherkids.org


Stoughton High School PTO Mike Kruse Mike.Kruse@stoughton.k12.wi.us


Stoughton Fair Trevor Dybevik trevor.dybevik@greatplainsmfg.com


Stoughton Sports Boosters Wade Rewey wrewey@gmail.com


Stoughton Girl Scouts Troop2301@gmail.com


Stoughton Boy Scouts 167 Hikermike10@gmail.com


Stoughton Boy Scouts 164 jjfoldy@chartermi.net


Stoughton Cub Scouts 162 redmare88@gmail.com







http://stannparish.weconnect.com/contact/index/id/1192


Krista.HuntleyRogers@stoughton.k12.wi.us















�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4� +RZ�RIWHQ�GR�\RX�XVH�WKH�IROORZLQJ
SDUN�IDFLOLWLHV�RIIHUHG�E\�WKH�&LW\�RI


6WRXJKWRQ"
$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG���


1HYHU 5DUHO\ 6RPHWLPHV 2IWHQ $OO�WKH�WLPH 7RWDO


1HLJKERUKRRG�SOD\JURXQGV�WRGGOHU�SDUNV ������ ������ ������ ��� ������
�� �� ��� ��� ��� ���


%DVHEDOO�VRIWEDOO�ILHOGV ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
��� ��� �� ��� �� ���


6RFFHU�IRRWEDOO�ILHOGV ������ ������ ������ ������ �����
��� ��� �� �� �� ���


3DYHG�SHGHVWULDQ�ELF\FOH�SDWKV ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


1DWXUH�PXOWLXVH�WUDLOV ����� ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


%DVNHWEDOO�FRXUWV ������ ������ ������ ����� �����
��� ��� ��� �� � ���


7HQQLV�FRXUWV ������ ������ ������ ����� �����
��� ��� ��� �� �� ���


1DWXUH�SUHVHUYHV ������ ������ ������ ������ �����
�� ��� ��� ��� �� ���


3LFQLF�DUHDV�VKHOWHUV ������ ������ ������ ������ �����
�� ��� ��� �� �� ���


7UROO�%HDFK�6ZLPPLQJ�)DFLOLW\ ������ ������ ������ ������ �����
��� �� ��� �� �� ���


6NDWHERDUG�ELNH�SDUNV ������ ������ ����� ����� �����
��� ��� �� �� �� ���


/RZHOO�3DUN�&RPPXQLW\�*DUGHQ ������ ������ ����� ����� �����
��� �� �� �� �� ���


2SHQ�VSDFH�SDUN�DUHDV�QRQVSHFLILF�XVH ������ ������ ������ ������ �����
��� ��� ��� �� �� ���


1RUVH�,FH�VNDWLQJ�ULQN ������ ������ ������ ����� �����
��� ��� �� �� �� ���


'LVF�JROI�FRXUVH ������ ������ ������ ����� �����
��� �� �� �� �� ���







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4� 7KLV�SDVW�VXPPHU��KRZ�PDQ\�WLPHV�GLG
D�PHPEHU�RI�\RXU�KRXVHKROG�YLVLW�RU�XVH


SDUN�IDFLOLWLHV�LQ�6WRXJKWRQ"
$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG���


1HYH U


6HOGRP


0RQWKO\


7ZLFH� D�
PRQWK


:HHNO\


'DL O \


�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV 5HVSRQVHV


1HYHU ����� ��


6HOGRP ����� ��


0RQWKO\ ����� ��


7ZLFH�D�PRQWK ����� ��


:HHNO\ ������ ���


'DLO\ ������ ���


7RWDO ���







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4� ,Q�WKH�IDOO��ZLQWHU��DQG�VSULQJ��KRZ�PDQ\
WLPHV�GRHV�DQ\�PHPEHU�RI�\RXU�KRXVHKROG


W\SLFDOO\�YLVLW�RU�XVH�SDUN�IDFLOLWLHV�LQ
6WRXJKWRQ"


$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG���


�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV 5HVSRQVHV


1HYHU ����� ��


6HOGRP ������ ��


0RQWKO\ ������ ��


7ZLFH�D�PRQWK ������ ���


:HHNO\ ������ ���


'DLO\ ����� ��


7RWDO ���


1HYH U


6HOGRP


0RQWKO\


7ZLFH�D�
PRQWK


:HHNO\


'DL O \







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4� :KLFK�6WRXJKWRQ�SDUN�GR�\RX�YLVLW�RU
XVH�PRVW�RIWHQ"
$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG����


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV 5HVSRQVHV


0DQGW�3DUN ������ ��


5DFHWUDFN�3DUN ������ ���


1RUVH�3DUN ������ ��


(DVW�3DUN ����� ��


9LUJLQ�/DNH�3DUN ����� ��


%MRLQ�3DUN ������ ��


/RZHOO�3DUN ����� ��


9HWHUDQ
V�3DUN ����� ��


5LYHUVLGH�3DUN ����� ��


'LYLVLRQ�6W��3DUN ����� �


'XQNLUN�3DUN ����� ��


&ULGGOH�3DUN ����� ��


6FKHIHONHU�3DUN ����� ��


:HVWYLHZ�5LGJH�3DUN ����� ��


+HJJHVWDG�3DUN ����� �


0LOO�3RQG�3DUN ����� �


7RWDO ���







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4� 5HJDUGOHVV�RI�KRZ�RIWHQ�\RX�XVH�WKH
SDUNV�V\VWHP��KRZ�ZRXOG�\RX�UDWH�WKH


LPSRUWDQFH�RI�SDUNV�DQG�RSHQ�VSDFH�WR�WKH
JHQHUDO�³TXDOLW\�RI�OLIH"´


$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG���


9HU\
8QLPSRUWDQW


8QLPSRUWDQW


1HXWUDO


,PSRUWDQW


9HU\
,PSRUWDQW


�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV 5HVSRQVHV


9HU\�8QLPSRUWDQW ������ ��


8QLPSRUWDQW ����� �


1HXWUDO ����� ��


,PSRUWDQW ������ ���


9HU\�,PSRUWDQW ������ ���


7RWDO ���







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4� 3OHDVH�LQGLFDWH�\RXU�OHYHO�RI
VDWLVIDFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ�


$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG���


([WUHPHO\�'LVVDWLVILHG 'LVVDWLVILHG 1HXWUDO 6DWLVILHG ([WUHPHO\�6DWLVILHG 7RWDO


2YHUDOO�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�ZLWK�6WRXJKWRQ�SDUNV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
�� �� �� ��� �� ���


3DUN�VDIHW\ ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
� �� ��� ��� �� ���


3DUN�FOHDQOLQHVV �� ����� ������ ������ ������
� �� �� ��� �� ���


0DLQWHQDQFH�RI�HTXLSPHQW�IDFLOLWLHV ����� ������ ������ ������ �����
� �� ��� ��� �� ���


0DLQWHQDQFH�RI�WXUIJUDVV ����� ������ ������ ��� �����
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


9DULHW\�RI�HTXLSPHQW�IDFLOLWLHV ����� ������ ������ ������ �����
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


(DVH�RI�DFFHVV�WR�HTXLSPHQW�IDFLOLWLHV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
� �� ��� ��� �� ���


$YDLODELOLW\�RI�HTXLSPHQW�IDFLOLWLHV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
� �� ��� ��� �� ���


3UR[LPLW\�RI�SDUN�WR�\RXU�KRPH ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
� �� �� ��� ��� ���


$YDLODELOLW\�RI�SDUNLQJ ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
� �� ��� ��� �� ���


3DUN�IXUQLVKLQJ��H�J��SLFQLF�WDEOHV� ����� ������ ������ ������ �����
� �� ��� ��� �� ���


1XPEHU�RI�UHVWURRPV ����� ������ ������ ������ �����
�� ��� ��� ��� �� ���


&OHDQOLQHVV�RI�UHVWURRPV ����� ������ ������ ������ �����
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4� $V�6WRXJKWRQ�H[SDQGV��KRZ�LPSRUWDQW
GR�\RX�EHOLHYH�LW�LV�IRU�WKH�&LW\�WR�DGG��RU
LQFUHDVH�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�W\SHV


RI�IDFLOLWLHV"
$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG���


([WUHPHO\�8QLPSRUWDQW 8QLPSRUWDQW 1HXWUDO ,PSRUWDQW ([WUHPHO\�,PSRUWDQW 7RWDO


1HLJKERUKRRG�SOD\JURXQGV�WRGGOHU�SDUNV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
� �� ��� ��� ��� ���


%DVHEDOO�VRIWEDOO�ILHOGV ����� ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


6RFFHU�IRRWEDOO�ILHOGV ����� ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


3DYHG�SHGHVWULDQ�ELF\FOH�SDWKV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� ��� ���


1DWXUH�PXOWLXVH�WUDLOV ����� ����� ��� ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� ��� ���


%DVNHWEDOO�FRXUWV ����� ������ ������ ������ �����
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


7HQQLV�FRXUWV ����� ������ ������ ������ �����
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


9ROOH\EDOO�FRXUWV ����� ������ ������ ������ �����
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


1DWXUH�SUHVHUYHV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� ��� ���


3LFQLF�DUHDV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
� �� ��� ��� ��� ���


6ZLPPLQJ�IDFLOLWLHV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� ��� ���


3HW�H[HUFLVLQJ�DUHDV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


6NDWHERDUG�ELNH�SDUNV ������ ������ ������ ������ �����
�� ��� ��� �� �� ���


&RPPXQLW\�JDUGHQV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


2SHQ�VSDFH�SDUN�DUHDV�QRQVSHFLILF�XVH ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


,FH�VNDWLQJ�ULQNV ����� ������ ������ ������ �����
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���


2XWGRRU�SHUIRUPDQFH�YHQXHV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
�� �� ��� ��� �� ���







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4� $V�6WRXJKWRQ�PRYHV�IRUZDUG�ZLWK�LWV
SODQV�WR�EXLOG�QHZ�SDUNV��SULRULWLHV�PXVW�EH


HVWDEOLVKHG��7KHUH�DUH�RSWLRQV�OLVWHG
EHORZ��3OHDVH�LQGLFDWH�ZKDW�\RXU�723��


35,25,7,(6�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�H[SHFWHG�XVH
E\�\RX�DQG�RU�PHPEHUV�RI�\RXU�KRXVHKROG�


$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG����


3ULRULW\��� 3ULRULW\��� 3ULRULW\��� 3ULRULW\��� 3ULRULW\��� 3ULRULW\��� 7RWDO


2SHQ�6SDFH ����� ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� �� �� �� �� ���


:LOGOLIH�3UHVHUYH���:HWODQGV ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� �� �� �� �� ���


:DONLQJ���%LF\FOH�3DWKV ������ ������ ������ ������ ����� �����
��� ��� �� �� �� �� ���


%DVNHWEDOO�&RXUWV ����� ������ ������ ������ ��� ������
� �� �� �� �� �� ��


9ROOH\EDOO�&RXUWV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������ ������
� � �� �� �� �� ��


%DVHEDOO���6RIWEDOO�'LDPRQGV ������ ������ ������ ������ ����� ������
�� �� �� �� �� �� ���


6RFFHU��)RRWEDOO�)LHOGV ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� �� �� �� �� ���


&KLOGUHQ
V�3OD\�(TXLSPHQW ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ �����
�� �� �� �� �� �� ���


7HQQLV�&RXUWV ����� ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
� �� �� �� �� �� ��


3LFNOHEDOO�&RXUWV ����� ����� ��� ��� ��� ������
� � � � � �� ��


&RYHUHG�3LFQLF�)DFLOLWLHV ����� ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� �� �� �� �� ���


6NDWHERDUG�%LNH�3DUN ����� ������ ����� ������ ������ ������
� � � �� � �� ��


5LYHUZDON ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� �� �� �� �� ���


2XWGRRU�SHUIRUPDQFH�YHQXHV ����� ����� ������ ������ ������ ������
�� �� �� �� �� �� ���


2WKHU ������ ������ ����� ����� ������ ������
�� �� � � �� �� ��







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4� +RZ�GR�\RX�UDWH�WKH�LPSRUWDQFH�RI
SDUNV�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FDWDJRULHV"


$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG����


,PSRUWDQW 6RPHZKDW�,PSRUWDQW 1RW�,PSRUWDQW 7RWDO


(FRQRPLF�LPSDFW�IRU�WKH�FRPPXQLW\ ������ ������ �����
��� ��� �� ���


6KDUHG�VRFLDO�H[SHULHQFHV ������ ������ �����
��� ��� �� ���


+HDOWK�EHQHILWV ������ ������ �����
��� �� �� ���


�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����


(FRQRPLF�
LPSDFW�IRU


WKH���


6KDUHG
VRFLDO


H[SHULHQFHV


+HDOWK�
EHQHILWV


,PSRUWDQW 6RPHZKDW�,PSRUWDQW 1RW�,PSRUWDQW







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4�� :KLFK�VWDWHPHQW�EHVW�UHIOHFWV�\RXU
RSLQLRQ�DERXW�WKH�FXUUHQW�QXPEHU�RI�SDUNV


LQ�6WRXJKWRQ"
$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG����


�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV 5HVSRQVHV


7RR�)HZ ������ ���


6XIILFLHQW�1XPEHU ������ ���


7RR�0DQ\ ����� �


7RWDO ���


7RR�)HZ


6XIILFLHQW�
1XPEHU


7RR�0DQ\







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4�� :KLFK�VWDWHPHQW�EHVW�UHIOHFWV�\RXU
RSLQLRQ�DERXW�WKH�FXUUHQW�VL]HV�RI�WKH�SDUNV


LQ�6WRXJKWRQ"
$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG���


7RR�6PDOO


$GHTXDWH
6L]H


7RR�/DUJH


�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV 5HVSRQVHV


7RR�6PDOO ������ ���


$GHTXDWH�6L]H ������ ���


7RR�/DUJH ����� �


7RWDO ���







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4�� 3OHDVH�LQGLFDWH�ZKHUH�\RX�YRWH


$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG���


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV 5HVSRQVHV


'LVWULFW����)LUVW�/XWKHUDQ�&KXUFK������(��:DVKLQJWRQ�6WUHHW ������ ���


'LVWULFW����6WRXJKWRQ�)LUH�6WDWLRQ������(��0DLQ�6WUHHW ������ ��


'LVWULFW����8QLWHG�0HWKRGLVW�&KXUFK������/LQFROQ�$YHQXH ������ ���


'LVWULFW����/DNHYLHZ�&KXUFK�������/LQFROQ�$YHQXH ������ ��


7RZQVKLS�YRWLQJ�ORFDWLRQ��RXW�RI�&LW\� ������ ���


7RWDO ���


'LVWULFW���
)LUVW


/XWKHUDQ���


'LVWULFW����
6WRXJKWRQ


)LUH���


'LVWULFW����
8QLWHG�


0HWKRGLVW���


'LVWULFW����
/DNHY�LHZ�
&KXUFK��
�������


7RZQVKLS�
YRWLQJ�


ORFDWLRQ���


�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4�� 3OHDVH�LQGLFDWH�\RXU�JHQGHU
$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG����


�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV 5HVSRQVHV


0DOH ������ ���


)HPDOH ������ ���


7RWDO ���


0D O H


)HPDOH







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�6XUYH\


4�� 3OHDVH�LQGLFDWH�\RXU�DJH�
$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG����


�����


� � � � � �


� � � � � �


� � � � � �


� � �


�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV 5HVSRQVHV


����� ����� ��


����� ������ ���


����� ������ ���


����� ����� ��


��� ����� ��


7RWDO ���







�����6WRXJKWRQ�3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�5HVLGHQW�
6XUYH\


4�� 3OHDVH�LQGLFDWH�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�SHRSOH
OLYLQJ�LQ�\RXU�KRXVHKROG�E\�DJH�


$QVZHUHG������6NLSSHG����


$QVZHU�&KRLFHV $YHUDJH�1XPEHU 7RWDO�1XPEHU 5HVSRQVHV


&KLOGUHQ���WR�� � ��� ���


&KLOGUHQ���± �� � ��� ���


&KLOGUHQ����± �� � ��� ���


$GXOWV��RYHU���� � ��� ���


7RWDO�5HVSRQGHQWV�����


&KLOGUHQ���±
��


&KLOGUHQ��
WR��


&KLOGUHQ���
± ��


$GXOWV��RYHU
���


� � � � � �







Stoughton Park Needs Survey


Greetings! This survey is designed to gather feedback pertaining to the existing park and open space facilities available to residents of
the Stoughton area. The goal of the survey is to collect information on outdoor facilities in CITY PARKS. County, private, indoor and
school district facilities are not included in this study.


Participation should take approximately 10 minutes and is greatly appreciated.







 Stoughton Park Needs Survey


Which of the following age groups in your household visit Stoughton parks? (Select all that apply)


Ages 0 - 3


Ages 4 - 6 


Ages 7 - 9


Ages 10 - 13


Ages 14 - 17


Ages 18 - 25


Ages 26 - 35


Ages 36 - 45


Ages 46 - 55


Ages 56 - 65


Ages 65 and up


Do you or any members of your family require ADA (American Disabilities Act) accommodations to access
park facilities?


Yes


No







Stoughton Park Needs Survey


What Stoughton park do you and/or members of your family visit the most often? (Choose one)


Why do you visit this park (what facilities do you use)?


What is the condition of this park and it's facilities?


Excellent


Good


Fair


Needs Improvement


What, if anything, needs improvement in this park?


What new facilities would you like to see in this park in the future? (Select all that apply)


Baseball/softball fields


Football Fields


LaCrosse Fields


Multi-Use Fields


Soccer Fields


Basketball Courts


Tennis Courts


Pickleball Courts


Volleyball Courts


Boating


Fishing Access


Community Gardens







Natural Gardens


Historic/Educational Sites


Park Concession Facilities


Park Restroom Facilities


Park Shelters


Bandshell/Performance Space


Picnic Areas


Playgrounds


Disc Golf


Horseshoes


Skate Park


Splash Pad


Community Pool


Community Recreation Center


Outdoor Ice Skating Rinks


Dog Park


Sledding Hills


Cross Country Ski Trails


ADA Accessible Trails


Hiking Only Trails


Shared Use Trails/Paths


No improvements needed


Other (please specify)







Stoughton Park Needs Survey


What Stoughton park do you and/or members of your family visit the second most often? (Choose one)


Why do you visit this park (what facilities do you use)?


What is the condition of this park and it's facilities?


Excellent


Good


Fair


Needs Improvement


What, if anything, needs improvement in this park?


What new facilities would you like to see in this park in the future? (Select all that apply)


Baseball/softball fields


Football Fields


LaCrosse Fields


Multi-Use Fields


Soccer Fields


Basketball Courts


Tennis Courts


Pickleball Courts


Volleyball Courts


Boating


Fishing Access


Community Gardens







Natural Gardens


Historic/Educational Sites


Park Concession Facilities


Park Restroom Facilities


Park Shelters


Bandshell/Performance Space


Picnic Areas


Playgrounds


Disc Golf


Horseshoes


Skate Park


Splash Pad


Community Pool


Community Recreation Center


Outdoor Ice Skating Rinks


Dog Park


Sledding Hills


Cross Country Ski Trails


ADA Accessible Trails


Hiking Only Trails


Shared Use Trails/Paths


No improvements needed


Other (please specify)







Stoughton Park Needs Survey


What Stoughton park do you and/or members of your family visit the third most often? (Choose one)


Why do you visit this park (what facilities do you use)?


What is the condition of this park and it's facilities?


Excellent


Good


Fair


Needs Improvement


What, if anything, needs improvement in this park?


What new facilities would you like to see in this park in the future? (Select all that apply)


Baseball/softball fields


Football Fields


LaCrosse Fields


Multi-Use Fields


Soccer Fields


Basketball Courts


Tennis Courts


Pickleball Courts


Volleyball Courts


Boating


Fishing Access


Community Gardens







Natural Gardens


Historic/Educational Sites


Park Concession Facilities


Park Restroom Facilities


Park Shelters


Bandshell/Performance Space


Picnic Areas


Playgrounds


Disc Golf


Horseshoes


Skate Park


Splash Pad


Community Pool


Community Recreation Center


Outdoor Ice Skating Rinks


Dog Park


Sledding Hills


Cross Country Ski Trails


ADA Accessible Trails


Hiking Only Trails


Shared Use Trails/Paths


No improvements needed


Other (please specify)







 Stoughton Park Needs Survey


 Adequately Serviced Needs Not Currently Met Not Sure


Families


Toddlers 0-5 years


Children 5-12 years


Adolescents 13-18 years


Adults 19-54 years


Seniors 55+ years


Individuals with
disabilities


If needs from any/all groups are not currently met, please comment here.


Considering the various age groups of people in the Stoughton area, please indicate whether the existing
facilities adequately meet their needs. If needs are not currently met, please specify what is lacking in the
blank box below.


Please indicate which if any of the following support components at existing park facilities need
improvement. Select all that apply.


Public Restrooms


Parking


Handicap Accessibility


Shelter


Safe Routes to Walk and/or Bike to the Facility


Programs


Please indicate the park locations and support components that need improvement below.







Considering the needs for additional outdoor recreational facilities, resources, and programs, please rate
the following in order of importance with 1 being the most urgent and 5 being the least urgent.


Maintenance of Existing Facilities


Increased Staffing


Improvements Added to Existing Facilities


Development of New Facilities


Offer Additional Programs







Your survey has been completed. Thanks for your input!


 Stoughton Park Needs Survey





		Public Input Plan.pdf

		POSP Stakeholder List.pdf

		2007 Survey Questions.pdf

		2014 Survey Questions.pdf

		2018 Survey Questions.pdf

		Stoughton Park Needs Survey

		Stoughton Park Needs Survey

		Which of the following age groups in your household visit Stoughton parks? (Select all that apply)

		Do you or any members of your family require ADA (American Disabilities Act) accommodations to access park facilities?



		Stoughton Park Needs Survey

		What Stoughton park do you and/or members of your family visit the most often? (Choose one)

		Why do you visit this park (what facilities do you use)?

		What is the condition of this park and it's facilities?

		What, if anything, needs improvement in this park?

		What new facilities would you like to see in this park in the future? (Select all that apply)



		Stoughton Park Needs Survey

		What Stoughton park do you and/or members of your family visit the second most often? (Choose one)

		Why do you visit this park (what facilities do you use)?

		What is the condition of this park and it's facilities?

		What, if anything, needs improvement in this park?

		What new facilities would you like to see in this park in the future? (Select all that apply)



		Stoughton Park Needs Survey

		What Stoughton park do you and/or members of your family visit the third most often? (Choose one)

		Why do you visit this park (what facilities do you use)?

		What is the condition of this park and it's facilities?

		What, if anything, needs improvement in this park?

		What new facilities would you like to see in this park in the future? (Select all that apply)



		Stoughton Park Needs Survey

		Considering the various age groups of people in the Stoughton area, please indicate whether the existing facilities adequately meet their needs. If needs are not currently met, please specify what is lacking in the blank box below.

		Please indicate which if any of the following support components at existing park facilities need improvement. Select all that apply.

		Please indicate the park locations and support components that need improvement below.

		Considering the needs for additional outdoor recreational facilities, resources, and programs, please rate the following in order of importance with 1 being the most urgent and 5 being the least urgent.



		Stoughton Park Needs Survey

		Your survey has been completed. Thanks for your input!







		86096846[]: Off

		86133449[]: Off

		86123288: 

		86130643: 

		86133449_other: 

		86144924[]: Off

		86144921: 

		86144923: 

		86144924_other: 

		86147398[]: Off

		86147395: 

		86147397: 

		86147398_other: 

		76702067[]: Off

		76702058_other: 

		76702068: 





